
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Sally Cole, Governance Services 
on 01432 260249 or e-mail scole@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the 
meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Friday 6 July 2012 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford, HR1 1SH 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Sally Cole, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 260249 
Email: scole@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

What is a personal interest? 
 

You have a personal interest in a matter if that 
matter affects the well-being or financial position of 
you, your relatives or people with whom you have a 
close personal association more than it would 
affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to 
which the matter relates. 
A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or 
people with whom you have a close personal 
association positively or negatively. If you or they 
would stand to lose by the decision, you should 
also declare it. 
You also have a personal interest in a matter if it 
relates to any interests, which you must register. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a personal 
interest? 
 

You must declare it when you get to the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as 
soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still 
speak and vote unless it is a prejudicial interest. 
If a matter affects a body to which you have been 
appointed by the authority, or a body exercising 
functions of a public nature, you only need declare 
the interest if you are going to speak on the matter. 
 

What is a prejudicial interest? 
 

You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if; 
a)  a member of the public, who knows the 

relevant facts, would reasonably think your 
personal interest is so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice your judgment of the public 
interest; and 

b)  the matter affects your financial interests or 
relates to a licensing or regulatory matter; 
and 

c)  the interest does not fall within one of the 
exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of 
the Code of Conduct. 

 
What do I need to do if I have a prejudicial 
interest? 
 

If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw 
from the meeting. However, under paragraph 12(2) 
of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public 
are allowed to make representations, give evidence 
or answer questions about that matter, you may 
also make representations as if you were a 
member of the public. However, you must withdraw 
from the meeting once you have made your 
representations and before any debate starts. 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor J Stone 
Vice-Chairman Councillor JW Millar 
  

Councillor CNH Attwood  
Councillor EMK Chave  
Councillor PGH Cutter  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor AJ Hempton-Smith  
Councillor TM James  
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
Councillor PJ McCaull  

 
  

 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  6 JULY 2012 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 6  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 May 2012.  
   
5. DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT   7 - 26  
   
 The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the Annual Governance 

Statement for 2011/12. 
 

   
6. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT  PLAN   27 - 50  
   
 The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the Annual Internal Audit 

Plan 2012/13. 
 

   
7. WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13   51 - 78  
   
 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with a draft forward work 

programme to enable them to discharge their responsibilities as the Audit 
and Governance Committee. 

 

   
8. ANNUAL AUDIT  FEE LETTER AND AUDIT WORK 2011/12   79 - 102  
   
 To inform the Committee of the work to be undertaken over coming months 

for 2011/12 financial year by the Audit Commission.  The report also 
includes the proposed indicative fee. 

 

   
9. AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE FROM THE AUDIT 

COMMISSION   
103 - 118  

   
 To provide an update on the progress of the Audit Commission delivering 

their responsibilities as the council’s external auditors.  It also updates the 
Committee on the externalisation of the audit practice. 

 

   





Your Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt information’. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least three clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  A list of the background papers to a report 
is given at the end of each report.  A background paper is a document on which the 
officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the 
public. 

• Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors 
with details of the membership of Cabinet and all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge. 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large print.  Please contact the 
officer named on the front cover of this agenda in advance of the meeting who will be 
pleased to deal with your request. 

The meeting venue is accessible for visitors in wheelchairs. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via bus route 75. 

• The service runs every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus-stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning officer named on the front cover of this agenda or 
by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday and 
8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at the southern entrance to the car park.  
A check will be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the building following 
which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect coats or other personal 
belongings. 

 





 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Audit and Governance Committee 
held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford, HR1 1SH on Friday 11 May 2012 at 2.00 pm 
  

Present: Councillor J Stone (Chairman) 
Councillor JW Millar (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: CNH Attwood, EMK Chave, KS Guthrie, AJ Hempton-Smith, 

TM James, Brig P Jones CBE and PJ McCaull 
 
  
In attendance: Councillors A Seldon, Chairman Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
  
   
104. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor PGH Cutter. 
 

105. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)   
 
There were no named substitutes. 
 

106. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
As the Chairman for the Hooople Audit Committee was addressing the Committee Councillor 
Hempton-Smith made a personal declaration, as he had a close relative working as a senior 
manager for Hoople Ltd. 
 

107. MINUTES   
 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2012 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman subject to the following 
amendments. 

 
 
Minute No: 101 – Amendments to the Constitution, Council Procedure Rules/Member 
Questions, paragraph five – add the word supplementary, ……the Constitution regarding 
supplementary questions referred to one supplementary question per Member and not per 
portfolio area. 
 
Minute No: 102 – Internal Audit Progress 2011/12, paragraph four – to add to the list of 
partner organisations Hoople Limited. 
 
Minute No: 103 – the meeting ended at 12.20 pm. 
 
 
NOTE: The Committee expressed its thanks to Pete Martens from Democratic Services, who 

had been providing support to the Committee and who would be retiring shortly after 
completing 30 years in local government.   

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



 

 

The Chairman also welcomed Alan Curless to the meeting as Chairman of the Audit 
Committee for Hoople Ltd., and invited Mr Curless to address the Committee and 
provide a short insight into Hoople Ltd.  Mr Curless made the following points: 
 
 
• Hoople Ltd came into being in October 2011 with the first audit meeting being held 

in November of that year. 
• Herefordshire Council has a 62% share holding and the company was formed with 

two non executive directors and two from the PCT – Alan Curless and Dean Taylor. 
• Hoople Ltd., intends to be responsive and effective for its customers and make the 

financial savings that are needed for the organisations they serve. 
• It was noted that the key performance indicators initially issued would be revised 

shortly and the Committee would be advised of the revisions.  All inherited policies 
and procedures are to be revised, and it was expected that this would be completed 
by June 2012. 

• Appointments were now being sought to the executive management team of Hoople 
Ltd. 

• There would now be a significant change for Hoople Ltd., as the PCT, which had 
been expected to be a long term shareholder, would now not be due to new 
government legislation that would see the demise of PCTs in 2013. 

• There was an expectation that Hoople Ltd., would in the future tender for private 
sector business.  It was noted that there had been expressions of interest by a 
number of public sector businesses in Hoople Ltd., and its partnership work with the 
Council. 

• The Committee was advised of the savings that had been made in staffing levels 
and that a report had recently been presented to Cabinet explaining the amount of 
savings made. 

• In response to a question on GP cluster groups and Hoople Ltd., being able to 
secure a contract with the Herefordshire GP cluster group, the Committee was 
advised that Hoople Ltd., had not as yet been successful in securing a contract for 
the provision of commissioning support. 

 
On behalf of the Committee the Chairman thanked Mr Curless for attending the meeting 
and providing such an in depth update. 
 
 

108. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS 2011/12   
 
The Head of Audit Services presented his report to update Members on the progress of 
internal audit.  The following points were made in discussion: 
 

• In response to a Member query the Chairman stated on behalf of the Committee 
that there was a requirement to periodically review all the partner organisations 
the Council worked with and that this could form part of the Annual Governance 
Statement.  The Committee requested to be advised on the extent of the 
arrangements, for a list of the directors for the various organisations and to be 
provided with a brief outline of the governance arrangements in place.  The Chief 
Officer Finance and Commercial stated he would provide a short report for the 
meeting in July and that the report would form part of the Annual Governance 
Statement.   

• It was noted that Hereford Futures was not listed on page 16 Appendix A to the 
report when referring to the Places and Communities Directorate. 

• The Committee was advised that 22 reviews were currently at the draft stage and 
the results would be brought to the next meeting. 

• The Committee was reminded of the four different ratings and the target for all 
organisations was adequate. 

2



 

 

• In referring to the Agresso system Members were advised that it was not at 
present performing as the Council would wish.  Currently the audit team were 
looking into how fraud issues could arise and the weaknesses in the system.  A 
detailed report had been compiled and it had been recognised that 16 IT controls 
needed to be put in place.  The Chief Officer Finance and Commercial assured 
the Committee that the issues would be addressed. 

• In answer to a question the Committee was reminded that KPMG provided 
support and experts to provide additional advice.  Substantial work had been 
done on reviews and any additional issues raised could be referred to the work 
plan. 

• The Committee was advised that the auditors had been asked to provide the lead 
for the Council on Health and Safety.  Specialist advice had been requested to 
review the system, as some weaknesses had been found. 

• It had been recognised there was a need to improve the Council’s current 
business continuity plans and an action plan was being put in place in order to 
support the long term strategies of the Council. 

• Risk management was generally seen to be ok across the Council.  Additionally 
ICT generally was rated as adequate. 

• It was noted that Hoople Ltd., had made a lot of progress in a short period of time 
with sound processes being put in place. 

• The Committee noted that a further draft report on Amey Wye Valley had been 
drafted but had not been finalised as contract negotiations were on going.  
Members were informed that the Director was aware of the issues.  The 
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, who was in attendance and 
invited to speak by the Chairman, advised that the new contract proposals were 
to go before the Overview and Scrutiny Committee before final agreement by 
Cabinet.   

• In referring to item 21 of the report relating to cash and deposits the Committee 
was informed it was adequate and that there were only minor issues. 

• The Committee was informed that two detailed reports on suspected fraud had 
been issued. 

• The Committee was advised that a full audit plan for 2012/13 would be presented 
at the next meeting of the Committee. 

• In response to a question Members were advised that work on adult social care 
was to be deferred and that frameworki was not an area it was proposed to look 
at. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
 

109. COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEWS   
 
The Assistant Director Law, Governance and Resilience presented his report on 
Community Governance Reviews.  The Assistant Director made the following points: 
 

• Community Governance Reviews came into being in 2007, allowed local 
authorities to carry out reviews of Town and Parish Councils and were different to 
boundary reviews. 

• The review in question was for Ross and both the town and rural parish councils 
were in support of the review. 

• It was proposed and agreed at the March Council meeting that it was appropriate 
for the Audit and Governance Committee to carry out any community governance 
reviews the council might require.  

• In the case of the Ross review it was suggested that a sub-committee is formed 
to deal with the review, decide on whom to consult, hold any public meetings, 

3



 

 

conduct any referendums and for the Committee to then report its findings to the 
Council. 

• If the Committee agree to form a sub-committee to deal with the review it is 
suggested the work of the sub-committee commence in the autumn. 

• The Committee would also need to decide for the future if it intends to be 
proactive in this area and look to see if there are any other areas that need to be 
reviewed or whether to deal with any issues as they arise. 

 
In response the Committee agreed: 
 

• The importance of commencing the review as soon as possible. 
• That a sub-committee be formed and consist of five Members representing all 

political groups, the Assistant Director to be delegated to set this up. 
• That meetings should be held in Ross. 
• That the sub-committee reports regularly to the Committee and the final decision 

is to be made by the Committee. 

RESOLVED 

 THAT it be noted that: 

a) the Council has decided to undertake a community governance 
review of the areas of Ross Town Council and Ross Rural Parish 
Council in the Autumn of 2013;  

b) the Audit and Governance Committee be empowered to 
undertake community governance reviews and to make 
recommendations to Council on the matter; and 

c) the Committee considered whether it wished to form a sub-
committee to deal with community governance reviews. 

 
110. CHANGES TO THE STANDARDS REGIME   

 
The Assistant Director Law, Governance and Resilience presented his report on the 
changes to the standards regime and informed the Committee of the following points: 
 

• To advise the Committee of the proposed set up for future standards matters and 
if the Committee is comfortable with the proposal, for the Committee to adopt the 
role of a standards committee as defined under the Localism Act as the 
Standards Board will be abolished and the current standards committee will finish 
at the end of June 2012. 

• All authorities are to have a code and one has been proposed by the Association 
of County Secretaries and Solicitors, however, currently there is no secondary 
legislation in place for a code to be adopted.  The new standards regime will 
apply to parish councils as well, which Herefordshire Council will have to 
oversee. 

• Independent panel members will be required and they will need to be new 
members and not the independent panel members currently used. 

• The Monitoring Officer will be expected to deal with all initial complaints and 
decide if the complaint needs to be referred to the new standards panel.  The 
Audit and Governance Committee would be the committee that deals with the 
issues and provides a response, but there would be no sanctions. 

• In response to a question the Committee was advised that the Herefordshire 
Association of Local Councils (HALC) would provide advice on the appropriate 
Town and or Parish Councillors that are to serve on the standards panel. 

4



 

 

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the latest developments regarding the 
new standards regime and development of a new code of conduct 
and the potential role that is envisaged for them. 

 
111. FUTURE MEETINGS   

 

RESOLVED: That the 7 August meeting be cancelled, that the meeting proposed 
for 25 September be revised to 21 September with a training event 
the week before and that the dates of 9 October, 12 November and 5 
December be approved. 

 
The meeting ended at 4.15 pm CHAIRMAN 

5



6



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Saverio Della Rocca, Interim Head of Audit on (01432) 260425 

  

MEETING: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6 JULY 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE SERVICES  

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the Annual Governance Statement for 2011/12. 
 
Key Decision 

This is not a Key Decision. 
 
Recommendation 

THAT: 
 

(a) the draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 attached as Appendix 1 to 
this report be reviewed; and  

 
(b) the draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 for inclusion in the Statement 

of Accounts for 2011/12 be approved. 
 

Key Points Summary 

• The draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 is set out in Appendix 1. 
 

• The Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 has been drafted in accordance with the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003. 

 
• The main areas where improvements are required to the Council’s governance and control 

processes include continuing to embed risk management, ensuring improvements are carried 
out to key systems where marginal assurance is given and controls are embedded within the 
Shared Services Partnership. 

 
Alternative Options 

1. There are no alternative options as the publication of the statement is a statutory requirement. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

7



Reasons for Recommendations 

2. This is a statutory requirement. 
 

Introduction and Background 

3. Section 12, paragraph 5.12.5 of the Audit and Governance Code sets out the terms of 
reference of the Audit and Governance Committee. One of the requirements of the terms of 
reference is that the Committee review and approve the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

4. The Annual Governance Statement has been reviewed by the Council’s Leadership Team.  
Prior to sign off by the Leadership Team senior managers reviewed the statement and where 
appropriate provided relevant comments. 
 

Key Considerations 

5. The Council has a responsibility for conducting at least annually a review of the effectiveness 
of the governance framework including the system of internal control. This is reported through 
the Annual Governance Statement which is reviewed and approved by the Audit and 
Governance Committee prior to its inclusion within the Council’s Statement of Accounts. The 
Annual Governance Statement also provides commentary on how the Council’s governance 
framework including the system of internal control can be improved. 
 

6. Actions on significant internal control issues identified in the Annual Governance Statement for 
2010/11 were reported to the Audit and Governance Committee as part of the Interim 
Assurance Reports in 2011/12. 
 

7. The Audit and Governance Code authorises the Audit and Governance Committee to review 
and approve the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 
 

8. Whilst the Annual Statement by its nature is only signed off once a year, the process of review 
is continuous.  As a result the reports presented to each meeting of the Audit & Governance 
Committee are used to inform the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

9. The Annual Governance Statement is signed by the Leader of the Council, the Chief 
Executive, the Chief Officer: Finance & Commercial and the Assistant Director (Law, 
Governance & Resilience). 

 
Financial Implications 

10. There are no financial Implications. 
 

Legal Implications 

11. The Accounts and Audit Regulations include requirements for all Council’s to produce an 
Annual Governance Statement. 
 

Risk Management 

12. There is a risk that the statement does not present a full and accurate description of the 
Council’s governance and control arrangements. 
 

8



Appendices 

Appendix 1- Audit and Governance Statement 2011/12 
 

9



10



 

 1 
 

Appendix 1 

Draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 

1. Scope of responsibility 

1.1 Herefordshire Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public 
money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a duty under the Local 
Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard 
to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

1.2 In discharging this duty, the Council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions.  These include arrangements for the 
management of risk. 

1.3 The Council has adopted a code of corporate governance that is consistent 
with the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy (“CIPFA”)/Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
(“SOLACE”) framework for delivering good governance in local 
government.  A copy of the code can be obtained from the Assistant 
Director – Law, Governance and Resilience. 

1.4 The Annual Governance Statement for 2011/12 explains how the Council 
has complied with its code of corporate governance.  It also explains how 
the requirements of Regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2003, as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) 
regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of a statement have been 
met. 

2. The purpose of the Governance framework 

2.1 The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and 
values by which the Council is managed and controlled.  The framework 
also sets out how the Council accounts to, engages with and leads the 
community. 

2.2 The governance framework enables the Council to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate and cost-effective 
services. 

2.3 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk 
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives as an individual’s failure 
to comply with policies and procedures, even when provided with 
comprehensive training on them, can never be entirely eliminated. 

2.4 The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to: 

11



 

 2 
 

 (a) identify the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims 
and objectives; 

 (b) evaluate the likelihood and impact of the risks should they be 
realised; and  

(c) identify and implement measures to reduce the likelihood of the risks 
being realised and to negate, or at least mitigate, their potential 
impact. 

3. The Governance framework 

3.1 The Council’s corporate governance framework was approved by the Audit 
and Corporate Governance Committee on 21 November 2008.  It seeks to 
ensure that the principles of good governance are embedded into all 
aspects of the Council’s work.  The five principles agreed by the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Committee have been linked to the six principles of 
good governance outlined in the SOLACE/CIPFA publication “Delivering 
good Governance in Local Government”. 

3.2 For ease of reference, the following table matches the Council’s set of 
principles with those contained in the SOLACE/CIPFA guidance: 

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 1 

Focusing on the purpose of the authority, on 
outcomes for the community and creating and 
implementing a vision for the local area. 

Council – Principle 1 Provide the best possible service to the people 
of Herefordshire. 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 2 

Members and officers working together to 
achieve a common purpose with clearly defined 
functions and roles. 

Council – principle 2 Define the roles of members and officers, 
ensure that they work together constructively 
and improve their effectiveness. 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance -  
Principle 3 

Promoting values for the authority and 
demonstrating the values of good governance 
through upholding high standards of conduct 
and behaviour. 

Council – Principle 3 Require high standards of conduct. 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 4 

Taking informed and transparent decisions 
which are subject to effective scrutiny and 
managing risk. 

Council – Principle 4 Take sound decisions on the basis of good 
information. 

12



 

 3 
 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 5 

Developing the capacity and the capability of 
members and officers to be effective. 

Council – Principle 2 Define the roles of members and officers, 
ensure that they work together constructively 
and improve their effectiveness. 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 6 

Engaging with local people and other 
stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability. 

Council – Principle 6 Be transparent and open: responsive to 
Herefordshire’s needs and accountable to its 
people. 

 

3.3 To comply with the Code of Governance (approved by Council on 31 
October 2008) the following has been carried out: 

 Principle 1 – Provide the best possible service to the people of 
Herefordshire  

3.4 The Council continues to develop the partnership with NHS Herefordshire, 
with work being done on the best approach to shared service delivery. The 
Council and PCT work as one organisation to plan, purchase, design and 
deliver care around people's individual needs close to where they live. 
There is a single corporate plan with shared targets, one set of agreed 
values, a joint management team, and several joined up teams and 
services.  

 
3.5 In April 2011 the Council along with NHS Herefordshire and Wyre Valley 

NHS Trust set up a Joint Venture (JV) Company to deliver shared services 
to all partners.  The Company, called Hoople Ltd, was formally established 
on 1 October 2012, and has made year good progress in implementing the 
structures required to ensure sound governance and robust internal control 
– it has a Board and other committees in place.  Hoople Ltd provides a 
range of services for its owners including ICT, financial services, HR and 
training.  The Council has made substantial savings, in excess of £500k,  
through transferring services to Hoople Ltd. 

 
The Council also continues to work on its 'Rising to the Challenge' 
programme which aims to transform the way in which services are 
delivered.  'Rising to the Challenge' consists of five work streams, each of 
which has a Executive lead sponsor, including Customer Focus, 
Communities First, Streamlining the Business, Better Services and People 
and Performance.  Each work stream consists of a number of projects.  The 
programme has been successful to date and allowed the Council to make 
savings of over £7m. 

 
 

13



 

 4 
 

3.6 The Council has a Joint Risk Management and Assurance Policy and Joint 
Risk Management Assurance Guidance which was approved by Cabinet in 
September 2011.  

3.7 The Council has an Environmental Management System (British Standard 
14001).  

 Principle 2 – Define the roles of members and officers, ensure that 
they work together constructively and improve their effectiveness 

3.8 The Constitution clarifies roles and responsibilities and ensures 
accountability for setting the policy framework, including the corporate 
objectives and long term outcomes in the Corporate Plan, for fulfilling 
executive functions including a much clearer scheme of delegation to 
officers, improved planning arrangements and greater clarity of roles for all 
councillors. 

3.9 The Audit and Governance Committee’s Terms of Refernce have been 
enlarged to provide for regular review of the Constitution. This provides a 
regular forum for improvement. 

3.10 The Chief Executive is the Head of Paid Service, the Chief Officer – 
Finance and Commercial Services  is designated the Section 151 Officer 
and the Assistant Director – Law, Governance and Resilience is designated 
the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

3.11 There is a formal staff performance review requirement for all officers.  

 Principle 3 – Require High Standards of Conduct 

3.12 A regular programme of member training has been delivered and induction 
for new members. A half day session on member/ officer relations was 
particularly well attended. 

3.13 The work on ethics and standards as been dominated by the preparations 
for the new standards regime under the Localism Act 2011. County, parish 
and independent members of Standards Committee have produced a draft 
code and draft system for determining complaints under that code. At the 
year end, we were awaiting secondary legislation from government 

3.14 There are Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers. 

3.15 Complaints cases have continued to be determined locally, and we have 
dealt with 55 complaints between March 2011 and May 2012. Out of these: 

 
25 required no further action; 
1 was referred to the Monitoring Officer for training of a councillor; 
2 were referred to the Monitoring Officer for written guidance to 
councillors; 
5 were referred to the Monitoring Officer for investigation; 
3 were withdrawn; 
1 is awaiting assessment; and 
18 were referred to Standards for England for investigation.  

14



 

 5 
 

 
Out of these 18: Standards for England investigated eight and decided 
that no further action should be taken on them. It did not investigate six 
and decided that no further action should be taken on those, and it 
referred four back to the original assessment subcommittee for further 
consideration in view of Standards for England’s impending closure. The 
assessment sub-committee subsequently decided to take no further 
action on those four. 
 
Of the 55 complaints, 37 were made about parish/town councillors; and 
18 were about Herefordshire Councillors. 
 

3.16 Just over a third of all allegations related to members bringing their office 
into disrepute (Paragraph 5 of the Code of Conduct). Bullying, or failing to 
treat others with respect, accounted for another third. There were also a 
significant number of allegations about aspects of members failing to 
declare interests (Paragraphs 8-12 of the Code), and members using their 
positions to secure an advantage for themselves (Paragraph 6 of the 
Code). We also received a number of complaints about disclosing 
confidential information (Paragraph 4 of the Code). 

 
3.17 Of the 37 complaints against parish or town councillors, 30 related to 

members of the same council. 18 of those required no further action, 18 
were referred to Standards for England and one was withdrawn. Of the 
remaining seven parish/town council complaints, five required no further 
action, one was referred for training and one was referred for investigation. 

 
3.18 In respect of Herefordshire Councillors, no action was required in 10 cases, 

two cases were referred to the Monitoring Officer for other action, such as 
training or written guidance, four were referred for investigation and two 
were withdrawn.   

 

3.19 The Council has shared values, which act as a guide for decision-making 
and a basis for developing positive and trusting relationships within the 
Council. 

3.20 There are procedures and policies in place to ensure that Members and 
Officers are not influenced by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest when 
making decisions and when dealing with stakeholders. 

3.21 A register of members’ interests is maintained and updated on a regular 
basis. 

3.22 An updated Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption Policy is in place. 

3.23 A Whistle-blowing Policy is in place and forms part of the Council’s 
Constitution. This was reviewed in December 2011 

3.24 There is a formal Monitoring Officer Statement in relation to the use of the 
Monitoring Officers powers. 

15



 

 6 
 

3.25 Written assurances are received from key managers.  These assurances 
highlight areas of concern and confirm that the service areas has effective 
controls in operation. 

 Principle 4 – Take sound decisions on the basis of good information 

3.26 There is an overview and scrutiny function that encourages constructive 
challenge.   

3.27 The Council has an Audit and Governance Committee, which is 
independent of the executive and scrutiny functions. 

3.28 The Council has a report writing framework and template which have been 
developed to ensure that all reports have contributions from key support 
officers, eg finance, legal, risk management and consultation.  Report 
writing guidance makes it clear what other matters should be considered 
when preparing reports, eg equalities and human rights, alternative options. 

3.29 Decisions made by Cabinet and Committees are based upon written 
reports as presented. 

3.30 There is a Data Quality Policy previously agreed by Cabinet in May 2008 
and updated in July 2010.   

 Principle 5 – Be transparent and open: responsive to Herefordshire’s 
needs and accountable to its people 

3.31 All meetings are held in public unless there are legal reasons for 
confidentiality. 

3.32 The format of the Cabinet meeting is designed to ensure greater 
transparency of decision-making and to emphasise the separate roles of 
cabinet members, scrutiny members, political group leaders and to ensure 
that those in attendance express the views of the members of the 
Committee or group that they represent.   

3.33 All Committee agendas, reports and minutes are publicly available on the 
Council’s website other than for confidentiality reasons. 

3.34 The public are allowed to ask a question at Council as long as a copy of the 
question is deposited with the Assistant Director – Law, Governance and 
Resilience. 

3.35 There is a Herefordshire Customer Insight Unit, established as a single 
point of contact for Herefordshire Council and the Primary Care Trust.  The 
unit is made up of officers from across the Council and Primary Care Trust, 
who work together to administer and monitor feedback such as feedback 
and complaints. Every directorate receives monthly performance reports 
relating to feedback.  

3.36 Since being established in January 2010, a total of 177 compliments and 
352 complaints have been received.  It should be noted that no complaints 

16



 

 7 
 

escalated to the Local Government Ombudsman or to the Parliamentary 
and Health Service Ombudsman were upheld.   

3.37 Arrangements are in place for the Council to inform the public about council 
services and service developments and these include the publication of the 
Herefordshire Matters Magazine, which is sent to every household in the 
county on a quarterly basis. This is supplemented by regular press and 
media notices.   

3.38 Further information about services can be found on the Council’s website 
and through other channels. For example, local election results were 
announced via Twitter in a pilot exercise during the 2011 local elections., 
which was well received. Another example, was in 2011 when a new 
school’s closure notification system was implemented whereby rather than 
phoning the council to ascertain information about school’s closures, 
parent’s and carer’s can now subscribe to an email/ text notification system. 
When the local school manager updates the system regarding closures 
those people who subscribe to the service get an automatic notification. 

3.39 In line with legislation, the council publishes all information relating to 
expenditure of over £500 on the website.  As required by the Localism Act 
the council has agreed and also publishes a pay policy statement, which 
details the remuneration of senior officers. 

4. Review of effectiveness 

4.1 Herefordshire Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework, including the 
system of internal control.  The review of effectiveness is informed by the 
work of the managers within the Council, who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment: the Chief 
Internal Auditor reports on the audits conducted throughout the year and 
also by comments made by the external auditor and other review agencies 
and inspectorates. 

4.2 The process of review is continuous and results in the Chief Internal 
Auditor’s assurance reports presented at each meeting of the Audit & 
Corporate Governance Committee.  These reports are used to inform the 
Annual Governance Statement.  The Annual Governance Statement is 
signed by the Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive, the Chief Officer – 
Finance and Commercial Services and the Assistant Director – Law, 
Governance and Resilience. 

4.3 The main independent sources of assurance on the operation of the 
corporate governance framework are the Council’s Audit Services team, its 
external auditors, other external review bodies and the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

4.4 The review of effectiveness for the current financial year identified that the 
following work had been undertaken in 2010/11 in relation to the key 
aspects of the Council’s governance framework outlined in paragraphs 4.5 
to 4.76.  

17



 

 8 
 

 (A) Constitution  

 At its meeting on 13 November 2009, the Council tasked the Monitoring 
Officer (Assistant Director – Law, Governance and Resilience) to undertake 
further work on the constitution under the direction of the Constitutional 
Review Working Group (CRWG). During 2010/11, the Council continued 
with Phases 2 and 3 of its Constitutional review.  

4.5 The Audit and Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference have been 
enlarged to provide for regular review of the Constitution. This provides a 
regular forum for improvement. 

4.6 One decision made by Cabinet was called in during 2011/12 as follows: 

(a) concerning a new sustainable model of business for the delivery of 
the Music Service 

4.7 On 25 May 2012, the Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was presented to Council.  The report summarised the work 
undertaken by the five Scrutiny Committees in 2011/12.   

 (B) Corporate Objectives and Priorities  

4.8 At their meetings, respectively on 28 January 2010 and 5 February 2010, 
the PCT Board and Council approved the high level vision, themes, 
strategic objectives and long term outcomes for the Joint Corporate Plan 
2010-13. On 14 June 2012 Cabinet received a report on ‘Understanding 
Herefordshire’ (the integrated evidence base and needs assessment); in 
light of this Cabinet have agreed that a review of the Corporate Plan be 
undertaken and the recommendations of Cabinet regarding a refreshed 
Corporate Plan are scheduled for Council consideration in November.  

 
4.9 The Joint Corporate Plan is supported by an annually refreshed delivery 

plan; the most recent iteration of the delivery plan, including measures and 
projects, was approved by Cabinet on 5 April 2012.  
 

4.10 The Plan provides the starting point for performance monitoring reporting 
and management across the Council, which is supplemented by a range of 
organisational performance indicators. 

 
 (C) Medium Term Financial Strategy   
4.11 The Medium Term Financial Strategy was developed in line with the 

Council’s approved financial procedures.  There was an integrated 
approach to corporate, service and financial planning processes. It is a joint 
plan with Herefordshire PCT.  

 
4.12 The updated Medium Term Financial Management Strategy for 2011/14 

was presented to Cabinet on 19 January 2012.  Cabinet recommended to 
Council the recommendations for updating.  

 
4.13 In their Annual Audit Letter dated November 2011 the Audit Commission 

noted that “The Council did well to comply with the requirements of 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).adopted for the first time 

18



 

 9 
 

in the 2010 CIPFA Code of Accounting Practice (the Code). The Code 
introduced numerous new requirements, the most significant of which 
related to accounting for leases, property, plant and equipment, grants and 
contributions. The project to implement IFRS was very well managed and 
included regular progress reports to the Audit & Governance Committee”.  

 
 (D) Code of Governance   

4.14 The Audit & Corporate Governance Committee approved the Annual 
Governance Statement for 2010/11 at its August 2011 meeting.   

4.15 The Audit and Governance Committee considered the Audit Commission’s 
Annual Governance Report at their September 2011 meeting.  The Audit 
Commission made five recommendations which were accepted by the 
Council.  

 
 (E) Financial management arrangements 

4.16 The Audit Commission’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter dated 
November 2011 highlighted the Council has generally good financial 
management arrangements. In particular the Council had well established 
medium term financial planning and budgeting to support the delivery of 
corporate and community plans. 

 
4.17 The Council had an overspend of £238,000 in 2011/12; this was funded 

from the general fund .   

4.18 The Council established Hoople Ltd in October 2011.  Since this date a 
number of the Council’s financial management processes have been 
undertaken by Hoople on behalf of the Council such as the production of 
monthly budgetary control statements which are distributed to officers 
within the Council.  Hoople also input into the Council’s medium term 
financial planning process through the production of cash flow forecasts.   
The Council obtains assurance on how effectively financial management 
controls within Hoople have been applied in a number of ways.  This 
includes Audit Services completing internal audit reviews of key systems 
which are then reported to the Council’s management and the Audit and 
Governance Committee.   

For 2011/12 there is a new requirement for the Council to declare whether it 
conforms with the financial management arrangements prescribed in the 
CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (2010) and set out in the Application Note to Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Framework.   

It is a matter for an individual council to assess whether it wishes to confirm 
with the recommended financial management arrangements in the CIPFA 
statement.  The council has taken the view that it broadly complies with 
most key aspects.  However, it has decided not to follow CIPFA’s statement 
about the position in the organisation of the lead financial role in the 
authority but has taken steps to allow access of the S151 role to both the 
Chief Executive and Leadership Team. 

19



 

 10 
 

 (F) Performance management arrangements  

 
4.19 The Council has a joint performance improvement framework which 

underpins the Joint Corporate Plan.   The performance improvement 
framework encompasses the Council’s arrangements for preparing 
directorate and service plans in support of corporate priorities.  

 
4.20 The arrangements for monitoring performance within directorates and 

reporting progress to members is established and culminated in quarterly 
Integrated Corporate Performance Reports to Cabinet in 2011/12.  The 
performance reports detail performance against the key priorities, 
performance measures and commitments as included in the Joint 
Corporate Plan.  In addition, as part of the report, each directorate now 
provides a commentary highlighting other performance related issues that 
were not part of the original Joint Corporate Plan, including those of 
partners. 
 

4.21 The framework is being updated for 2012-13 to better illustrate the 
performance of our strategic partners in enabling the Council to deliver 
against its agreed priorities. 

  
4.22 The end of year Integrated Corporate Performance Report was presented 

to Cabinet on 14th June 2012.  In summary the report states that:  
 
• Direction of travel: For those indicators where data has been reported 

that can be compared with the same period last year, 56.8% are 
showing improvement (50.7% in 2010-11). 

• Achievement of targets:  where either end of year or latest data is 
available 64% have achieved or exceeded target. 

• Delivery of projects:  the majority of projects either have been delivered 
to schedule or are on target. 

 
 (G) Risk management arrangements  

4.23 Since April 2011, the Council has developed its approach to risk 
management to ensure that processes are consistent across the 
organisation at a Directorate level. A single framework has been adopted 
for the documentation of strategic and operational risks, based upon an 
Excel spread sheet model.  The approach includes reporting the strategic 
risks which arise from Directorates through to the HPS Leadership Team, 
with overall Directorate risks reported to the Resilience Group 

4.24 The role of the Resilience Group is to develop and implement a consistent 
approach to risk management across HPS, promoting a risk management 
culture. In addition, its role includes reviewing significant new and emerging 
risks and monitoring the effectiveness of risk escalation to the Leadership 
Team. 

4.25 The Council approved its Risk Management and Assurance Policy and 
Guidance in September 2011; it reflects good practice principles and as a 
consequence the design of the process is considered effective.. The Policy 
includes the roles and responsibilities of Officers and Groups across the 

20



 

 11 
 

Council, and documents the process for risk identification, control, reporting 
and monitoring.  Director’s and Managers are responsible under the Risk 
Management Policy to manage risks assigned to them, ensuring effective 
risk management processes are in place. This includes the reporting of 
significant risks and those risks where there is inadequate control to the 
relevant Committee or Board.  

4.26 The formal arrangements which have been developed are at a Directorate 
and Division level. Service areas and teams have been encouraged to 
discuss risk management and develop risk management arrangements; 
however, there is not prescriptive format for the recording of risks at this 
level, as is in the case of Division and Directorate level.   

 

 (H) Anti-Fraud, anti-corruption and whistle-blowing arrangements  

4.27 The Council has anti fraud and corruption and Whistle-blowing policies 
which were last updated in October 2011.  These policies are available on 
the Intranet.  Staff induction includes ensuring employees are aware of all 
relevant policies and procedures.  Reminders are issued throughout the 
year through corporate communication channels.    There were 2 
whistleblowing incidents recorded for 2011/12.  

4.28 The Council suffered a suspected fraud in February 2012 whereby a false 
invoice was paid.  This matter is with the Police and the Council has been 
informed that the monies will be repaid. In response to the fraud, the 
Council has: 

• prepared a case file (through Internal Audit) which has been given to the 
Police to assist them; 

• under the direction of the Chief Officer – Finance and Commercial 
reviewed the circumstance of the fraud and sought to close down 
weaknesses that allowed the fraud to be committed; and  

• undertaken further work to assess whether there have been further 
fraudulent payments – no issues were found. 

 

(I) Project management arrangements  

 4.29 The Council has adopted the Prince 2 project management methodology 
for all major programmes and projects.  The key principles of the Prince 2 
methodology are applied to the management of less major projects.  There 
is a Corporate Programmes team with project management responsibilities.  

 
4.30 The Joint Corporate Plan 2010-13 contains a large number of projects.  The 

status of projects is monitored through the quarterly Integrated Corporate 
Performance Report presented to Cabinet. 

 
 (J) Community engagement  

4.31 The Community Engagement Framework is about developing a dialogue 
between public agencies and the local communities - listening, talking and 

21



 

 12 
 

working together, so that people are involved in addressing the issues that 
impact on their lives and feel they are able to influence service providers 
and vice versa. 

 
4.32 Implementing the Framework is happening in tandem with the Locality 

Strategy.  To take this forward, as well as ensuring more effective co-
ordination in those areas on which HPS needs to engage with citizens, HPS 
and its partners are also supporting mechanisms and facilitating 
opportunities for communities to be proactively engaged in issues which 
matter to them.  The latter includes existing mechanisms such as parish 
plans, together with new opportunities provided through locality working.   

 
 (K) Data Quality  

4.33 Although the Council recognises the importance of data quality and had a 
data quality action plan aimed at improving the quality of arrangements in 
place, the organisational changes during 2011 meant that no plan was put 
in place for 2011/12. 

 
4.34 The essential elements of the previous 2010 quality action plan were 

completed and ‘signed off’ by Cabinet on 22 July 2010 accepting that 7 
tasks remained amber rated.  This was an improved position when 
compared to the prior year when some tasks were rated as ‘red’.  The 
existing DQ action plan is now almost 2 years out-of-date. Therefore the 
People, Policy, and Partnerships division of Corporate Services will be 
reviewing the legacy data quality action plan in 2012/13 in order to create a 
new DQ plan. 

 
4.35 The need to maintain and improve data quality remains critically important 

and the review and resulting 2012/13 action plan will be reported  through 
the new Information Management & Technology (IM&T) governance 
arrangements. The actions agreed will then be monitored through the 
integrated corporate performance report to Cabinet & the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee rather than by separate reports.  

 
4.36 There is a Data Quality Policy previously agreed by Cabinet in May 2008 

and updated in July 2010. This is due for review in May 2013. 

 (L) Independent review  

4.37 The Audit and Governance Committee met six times during the year.   The 
Committee received reports from officers, Audit Services and the Audit 
Commission in a number of areas including internal control, external audit 
and governance.  

 
4.38 The Council’s responsibility for maintaining an effective internal audit 

function is set out in Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2003.  The responsibility is delegated to the Chief Officer - Finance and 
Commercial Services. This Officer also has responsibility for the 
administration of the Council’s financial affairs as set out in section 151 of 
the Local Government Act 1972.  

 

22



 

 13 
 

4.39 The Audit Services Team operates in accordance with best practice, 
professional standards and guidelines.  The Team independently and 
objectively reviews, on a continual basis, the extent to which reliance can 
be placed on the internal control environment.  This is evidenced by the 
opinion given on the Council’s overall system of control by the Interim Head 
of Audit which is satisfactory for 2011/12.  

  
4.40 The Audit & Corporate Governance Committee receives interim and annual 

reports on internal audit activity and approves the annual audit plan and 
Audit Strategy. 

4.41 The Audit Commission’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter dated 
November 2010 highlighted that they placed reliance on the work of Internal 
Audit in relation to substantive tests that addressed the risks of mis-
statement identified. 

 
4.42 Ombudsman responsibility passed this year to the CIU 

4.43 Audit Services have completed their work on the Council’s financial and 
other key systems.  The majority of systems were graded as either 
Substantial or Adequate.  Six areas were graded as providing “Limited 
Assurance”, these were General Ledger, Accounts Payable, Agresso IT 
controls, Health and Safety and Business Continuity.     

 
 (M) External Inspections  - Audit Commission Annual Audit and 

Inspection Letter (November 2011) 

4.44 The Audit Commission in their Annual Audit Letter stated that the Council is 
managing and using its money, time and people to deliver value for money.    
The Letter notes that further work is required to ensure that more effective 
measures are put in place to address the main risk of adult social care over 
spending. 

 
4.45 The Audit Commission also noted the Council has put in good governance 

arrangements to deliver anticipated savings.  However, these processes 
could be improved, through clearer reporting to Cabinet.   

 
Information Technology Security Techniques (ISO 27001) 

4.46 The external assessor SGS completed their 2011/12 audit in December 
2011, and concluded after a further visit in March 2012 that Herefordshire 
Council ICT Services has maintained its information security management 
system in line with the requirements of the standard.  

 
4.47 The Council’s ISO27001 certification was continued. 

 
 (N) Assurances by Key Managers  

4.48 Written assurances have been received from key managers.  These 
assurances highlight areas of concern and confirm that: 

 (a) action is being taken on recommendations from audit reviews; 

23



 

 14 
 

(b) council money is being banked promptly and that reconciliations to 
the Council’s corporate finance systems are up to date; 

(c) gifts and hospitality have been declared in line with Council policy; 

(d) effective controls are operational in each service area. 

4.49 Written assurances have also been received from directors and heads of 
service, giving assurance that there are no incidents of suspected fraud or 
corruption within their service area 

  

5. Significant Governance issues 2011/12 

There were three significant internal control issues identified in the Annual 
Governance Statement for 2010/11.  The progress made on these issues 
are set out below: 

• the Council continue to embed Risk Management, improve the control 
framework within the Council’s key systems and develop the control 
environment in relation to Hoople.  - All of these areas have been 
progressed by the Council.  Improvements have been made to the Risk 
Management framework within the Council, such as ensuring that risk is 
considered by the Council’s senior management team through 
discussion and analysis at the Resilience Group, although further 
improvements are required to ensure that risk management practices 
are consistently implemented across the Council.    

• The Council have also developed the control framework in relation to 
Hoople.  Audit Services stated within their report in relation to Hoople 
that the organisation has made good progress in implementing the 
structures required to ensure sound governance and robust internal 
control, although further work is required so that these processes are 
embedded within the Company.    The Council have managed to ensure 
that controls within some of its key systems are consistently 
implemented.   

• However, Audit Services have identified that significant improvements 
are required in key areas, such as Health and Safety and Business 
Continuity.  This has been raised as a Significant Control Issue for 
2011/12 

5.1 The significant governance issues identified as a result of the annual review 
of the Council’s governance arrangement are as follows: 

5.2 Audit Services completed reviews of the Council’s financial management 
functions undertaken on their behalf by Hoople.  They concluded that 
further significant work was required to ensure controls are effectively 
implemented within the Accounts Payable and General Ledger functions.   
(Chief Officer – Finance and Commercial Services). 

24



 

 15 
 

5.3 The Council also need to develop IT controls within its Agresso system to 
ensure that any data held is protected and secure.  (Chief Officer – Finance 
and Commercial Services). 

5.4 Two areas within the Council’s corporate function also require further 
development.   Key controls within its Health and Safety and Business 
Continuity functions need to be established to ensure that these functions 
can effectively meet their objectives.  (Assistant Director – Law, 
Governance and Resilience).  

5.5 The Council has experienced significant overspends in relation to Adult and 
Social Care – it has a detailed project plan to address financial 
management issues and has set up a Project team to address a number of 
control issues. 

 

 
Cllr John Jarvis Signed: 
Leader of the Council Date: 
 
Chris Bull Signed: 
Chief Executive & Head of Paid Services Date: 
 
David Powell 
Chief Officer – Finance and Commercial Services  Signed: 
& Section 151 Officer Date: 
 
 
Chris Chapman  
Assistant Director – Law, Governance and Resilience Signed: 
and Monitoring Officer Date: 
 

25



26



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Saverio DellaRocca –Head of Audit Services on (01432) 260426 

  

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 

 

MEETING: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6 JULY 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2012/13 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE SERVICES  

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2012/13. 

Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

Recommendation 

THAT: the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 be reviewed and approved. 

Key Points Summary 

• The draft Annual Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 is set out in Appendix 1. 

• The draft Annual Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 has been reviewed and agreed by the Council’s 
Leadership Team. 

• The work programme is covered elsewhere here on the agenda. 

Alternative Options 

1. There are not alternative options as this is a requirement of the Audit and Governance Code. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2. This is a requirement of the Audit and Governance Code. 

  

AGENDA ITEM 6

27



Introduction and Background 

3. Preparation and adoption of the Annual Internal Audit Plan represents best practice as required 
by the CIPFA Code of Practice of Internal Audit in Local Government (2006) and the document 
is an integral part of the Council’s internal control assurance process. Under its terms of 
reference the Audit and Governance Committee is required to review and approve the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan. 

 
Key Considerations 
 
4. The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (2006) states that “The 

Head of Internal Audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan designed to implement the audit 
strategy”. 

 
5. The Annual Internal Audit Plan (attached at Appendix 1) is a risk based plan that takes account 

of the Council’s key issues and objectives. This plan has been compiled through discussions 
with the Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services), input from the Leadership Team, 
Internal Audit’s knowledge of the Local Government sector, a desk top review of key documents 
such as the Council’s risk registers and a review of findings from previous internal audits. 
 

6. It is important that the plan demonstrates how the council complies with relevant standards for 
provision of its internal audit function.  The report meets statutory requirements. 
 

7. The plan has been compiled through discussion with the Chief Officer: Finance & Commercial 
and the Leadership Team. 
 

8. It is estimated that the Internal Audit Plan will require 750 – 850 days of audit input.  The 
performance against the plan is kept under review by the Chief Officer: Finance & Commercial 
and there is regular reporting to the Audit & Governance Committee. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
9. There are no financial Implications. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
10. Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended) established that the Council 

shall maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and 
of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper practices in relation to Internal 
Control. 

 
11. In addition under Section 151 of the Local Government Finance Act 1972 the Chief Officer – 

Finance and Commercial (as Section 151 Officer) is responsible for ensuring that proper 
arrangements exist for the management of the Council’s financial affairs. An adequate and 
effective Internal Audit function which is led by a robust Internal Audit Plan is fundamental to the 
fulfilment of that responsibility. 

 
Risk Management 
 
12. There is the risk that the Annual Internal Audit Plan does not take into account the key issues 

and risks facing the Council and does not provide adequate coverage of the Council’s key 
systems for the Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion on the Council’s control environment. 
The process by which the plan has been compiled mitigates this risk. 

28



  

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Annual Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 

29



30



Herefordshire Council 

PUBLIC SECTOR AUDIT

INTERNAL AUDIT

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 
2011/ 12 – 2014/ 15 and Annual 

Internal Audit Plan 
2012/ 13 

31



Content

The contacts 
in connection with this 
report are:

Saverio Della Rocca
Audit Director
KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel:  021 335 2367
saverio.dellarocca@kpmg.co.uk

Mukhtar Khangura
Audit Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0121 232 3216
Mukhtar.khangura@kpmg.co.uk

Page

1. Executive Summary 2

2. Internal Audit Objectives 4

3. Developing the plan 5

4. Key Issues and Coverage 7

5. Resources 11

6. Our Audit Approach and Performance Indicators  12

Appendices

1. Resource Allocation for 2011/12  - 2014/15

2. Opinion and Description of Levels of Assurance

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
1

This Report is CONFIDENTIAL and its circulation and use are RESTRICTED.

This Report has been prepared on the basis set out in our Contract, and should be read in
conjunction with the Contract. This Report is for the benefit of Herefordshire Council (“ the
Council” ) and the other parties that we have agreed in writing to treat as addressees of the
Contract (together with the Beneficiaries), and has been released to the Beneficiaries on the basis
that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part, w ithout our prior written
consent. We have not verified the reliability or accuracy of any information obtained in the course
of our work, other than in the limited circumstances set out in the Contract. This Report is not
suitable to be relied on by any party wishing to acquire rights against KPMG LLP (other than the
Beneficiaries) for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Beneficiaries that
obtains access to this Report or a copy (under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or otherwise)
and chooses to rely on this Report (or any part of it) does so at its own risk. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, KPMG LLP does not assume any responsibility and will not accept any liability in
respect of this Report to any party other than the Beneficiaries.

32



Section One
Executive Summary

1.1 Purpose of this report

This report meets the requirements under the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (2006) (“ the
Code” ) for the Head of Internal Audit to produce a Internal Audit Strategy together with an Annual Internal Audit
Plan. The Strategy is a high level statement of how the internal audit service will be delivered and developed. The
Annual Internal Audit Plan sets out the number and types of review which will be undertaken to deliver the Internal
Audit Strategy.

Under the Code there a number of areas that the Strategy must detail. We have set these out below:

• Internal Audit objectives (Section two);

• How Internal Audit’s work will identify and address significant local and national issues and risks (Section four);

• How the service will be provided (Section five); and

• The resources and skills required to deliver the strategy(Section five).

We have set out detail to support each of these requirements within the main body of our report.

1.2 Internal Audit’s objectives

The core role of Internal Audit is to provide assurance to senior management that there are adequate and effective
internal control arrangements in place to mitigate key risks and achieve objectives. In performing its role, Internal
Audit aims to, where appropriate:

• Contribute to the improvement of the internal control environment;

• Identify opportunities for performance improvement;

This draft audit plan outlines the proposed internal audit input for 2012/ 13. It has been prepared with
reference to previous audit issues, prior year internal audit activity, risks and developments within
Herefordshire Council (“the Council”) and topical issues in the sector.

The plan also sets out how we will comply with the relevant standards for provision of your internal audit
function. It provides a risk based analysis of the Council’s operations as a basis for our work and summarises the
performance metrics we will use.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
2

• Identify opportunities for performance improvement;

• Evaluate where systems are over controlled or inefficient; and

• Identify cost saving opportunities.

The detailed terms of reference for Internal Audit are set out within the Audit Charter which is being updated.

1.3 Key issues and Risks

The Council is facing a number of significant issues over the next financial year, both financially and operationally,
these include:

• Delivering key projects such as “ Rising to the Challenge” - This programme seeks to deliver, amongst other
objectives, improved performance at a reduced cost through different ways of working. The framework over this
programme has recently been further developed and the Council needs to ensure that these revised processes
successfully deliver the aims of the project;

• Continuing to embed working arrangements with Hoople - This has been Hoople’s first year of operation and it
has defined its role and set out its relationship with the Council. The next key step for the Council and for Hoople
is to embed working arrangements as Hoople starts to develop the services it could provide to other
organisations;

• Ensuring the continued effectiveness of its routine control and governance processes such as its risk
management, performance and financial management functions within the current period of change;

• Continuing to implement the roll out of the Agresso financial management system so that it not only delivers
robust day to day functionality, but it can also be used to drive efficiencies in how the Council, through Hoople,
delivers financial services;

• Ensuring that the Adult and Social Care function can successfully implement new ways of working in relation to
the issues raised over its financial management;

• Continuing to ensure that it can obtain maximum benefit from its major contracts, such as the contract which it
has in place with AMEY; and

• Responding effectively to counter fraudulent activity - the Council needs to ensure that both its processes and
procedures to highlight and deal w ith fraud are adequate and effective, in addition to creating an anti-fraud culture
where instances of fraud are not tolerated..

33



Section One
Executive Summary – (continued)

1.4 Developing the plan

We have compiled a risk based plan that takes account of the Council’s key issues and objectives. This plan has
been compiled through discussions with HPSLT members, the Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services),
our knowledge of the sector, a desk top review of key documents, such as the Council’s risk registers and a
review of findings from previous internal audits.

The Internal Audit Plan includes reviews of key financial, operational and corporate systems. We believe that a
total of 750 – 850 days of internal audit input is required to deliver the plan. This input w ill ensure that a fully
comprehensive internal audit service is provided to the Council. We have set out our draft Internal Audit Plan at
Appendix 1 and have provided further information on this area in Section four.

1.5 Resources

The Audit Service is being led by KPMG, with Sav Della Rocca as the Council’s Head of Internal Audit and Mukhtar
Khangura as the Internal Audit Manager. The service is to be provided using a combination of resources from
Hoople and resources from KPMG. All staff have considerable experience of providing an effective and efficient
internal audit service.

1.6 Audit Approach

We have a comprehensive audit approach and quality assurance process that meets the Code of Practice for
Internal Audit in Local Government (2006). This process is set out in our Audit Charter and is summarised in
Section six. This process ensures that our work is of a high standard and delivers a quality internal audit service to
the Council.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
3

34



Section Two
Internal Audit Objectives

The need to maintain an internal audit function is implied by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 under
which local authorities are required to make proper arrangements for the administration of their financial affairs
and to delegate responsibility for those arrangements to one of their officers. The Accounts and Audit Regulations
2003 amended by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 are explicit about the requirement to maintain an
adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance
with the proper practices in relation to internal control.

2.1 Core Role of Internal Audit

The core role of Internal Audit is to provide assurance to Members and senior management that there are
adequate and effective internal control arrangements in place to mitigate key risks and achieve objectives. In these
ever changing times we believe that Internal Audit should not only provide its core role but provide a added value
service. In performing its role, Internal Audit aims to, where appropriate:

• contribute to the improvement of the internal control environment;

• identify opportunities for performance improvement;

• evaluate where systems are over controlled or inefficient; and

• identify cost saving opportunities.

Internal Audit is not responsible for ensuring that adequate and effective internal controls are established to
manage the key risks – that responsibility lies with senior management.

2.2 Independence of Audit Services

KPMG have been engaged by the Council to lead the Internal Audit function for the Council. Sav, as Head of
Internal Audit, reports directly to the Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services). The Chief Officer (Finance
and Commercial Services) is the Council’s Responsible Financial Officer under the terms of Section 151 of the

Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective opinion to the Council on risk
management, control and governance by evaluating their effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives.
It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a proper economic,
efficient and effective use of resources.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
4

and Commercial Services) is the Council’s Responsible Financial Officer under the terms of Section 151 of the
Local Government Act 1972.

The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for the day to day management of the Audit Services Team.

35



Section Three
Developing the Plan

3.1 Developing the plan

All local authorities face a very challenging environment with pressures to both increase performance and
decrease costs. We believe that a responsive and effective internal audit function can help the Council in meeting
these challenges while assisting the Council achieve its objectives. This can only be achieved through developing
a comprehensive Internal Audit Plan in which the resources available to the internal audit function are allocated to
areas of greatest need. We have developed the draft plan taking into consideration the issues below:

Our proposed work for the year has involved completing a number of actions to ensure that the plan meets the 
needs of the Council and provides an effective and efficient assurance service.  

Internal
Audit
Plan

Desk top
review of key 
documents

(eg Corporate Plan 
and Risk Register)

Sign-off by 
management

and 
Audit and 

Governance 
Committee

Identifying
types of

audit

Risk
assessment 

(including updates 
to reflect 

emerging risks in 
year)

Meetings
with other 
assurance 
providers

Consultation
with

stakeholders

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
5

Plan

3.2 Desktop review

In developing the Internal Audit Plan, we have taken account of the following:

• The Council’s risk register’s (The Council Assurance Framework, The Partnership Assurance Framework and
The Board Assurance Framework documents);

• Discussions with officers including the views of the Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services);

• Emerging issues and risks facing the sector;

• The Council’s objectives detailed within its Corporate Plan 2011-14;

• Existing projects, strategies and initiatives that the Council is undertaking;

• Input from the Internal Audit Team;

• The performance of the Council from a review of its Key Performance Indicators; and

• The Council’s “ Rising to the Challenge” project.

3.3 Views of HPSLT and other officers

We have met w ith members of HPSLT and have factored in their views to the existing plan. In some
instances, Strategic Directors have asked that further meetings are held to determine the exact nature and
scope of individual reviews. For example, we have allocated time in the plan to focus on issues in relation to
Adult and Social Care, AMEY and Legal Services. The precise coverage of these reviews will be addressed
through further discussions with relevant officers.

36



Section Three
Developing the Plan – (continued)
3.3 Liaison with the External Auditors

We understand the importance of the good working relationships with the External Auditors in order to minimise
duplication of effort. We are due to meet with the external auditors shortly in order to build their requirements into
the audit plan, where appropriate, through our joint working protocol.

3.4 Liaison with the other assurance providers/links to wider projects

We recognise that there are other assurance providers (both internal and external) who provide some assurance
over aspects of the Council’s operations e.g. OFSTED and the Care Quality Commission. Where possible we will
seek to place reliance on such work and reduce internal audit coverage appropriately. For example, separate
support has been commissioned in relation to the PFI Waste contract with Worcestershire so there is no planned
audit work in this area.

We are also liaising with the Internal Audit team within NHS Herefordshire to ensure that effective working
relationship is established and to identify areas for joint review.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
6

37



Section Four
Key Issues and Coverage

Our detailed programme of work sets out how we propose to provide assurance over the key risks you face.  It 
might be necessary to update this Internal Audit Plan during the year, should the Council’s risk profile change and 
different risks emerge that would benefit from internal audit input.  We will ensure that both management and 
the Audit and Governance Committee are kept up to date with all work that we perform.

4.1 Overview

The Council is facing a number of significant challenges and risks over the next financial year as it continues to
implement a number of key programmes and initiatives. The Council has identified these risks within its
Corporate Risk Register’s. These include:

• Failure to deliver the £9.3m cost savings outlined for 2012/13;

• Inadequate commissioning of services which are not delivered to the appropriate cost and quality;

• Failure to progress with the Integrated Waste Management PFI Scheme; and

• Failure to further progress with Hoople and deliver the £413k savings the Council anticipates.

The Council will need assurance that the controls it has in place to mitigate these risks are being effectively
applied and that its control environment is robust.

4.2 Councils control environment

We have summarised below the Council’s overall control environment. The control environment is the
collection of systems and processes that helps the Council manage the above risks and achieve its objectives.
These groupings form the key strands to our internal audit work:

Core support: these include systems that support the Council’s service delivery, such as its financial, IT and HR
systems;

Corporate systems: these are the core business processes that give the Council direction and provide oversight
over its activities. For example, the risk management, performance management and corporate planning
processes; and

Operational systems: these include the main systems associated with the Council’s core activities and

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
7

Corporate systems

Core Support systems

Performance 
Management 

Risk Management

Legal Services

Business Continuity

Corporate Planning

Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption

IT
 and H

um
an R

esourcesC
or

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
s

Operational systems

Service Delivery

External stakeholders

In -house Out-sourced

Partnered

Operational systems: these include the main systems associated with the Council’s core activities and
functions.

38



Section Four
Key Issues and Coverage – (continued)

4.3 Audit Reviews

We have summarised the key areas of our internal audit plan below. The indicative resource allocations for
these is shown in Appendix 1. We have set these out below, grouped by Corporate and Directorate systems.

Area Internal audit work in 2012/ 13

Corporate systems These systems cover Financial Systems and Other systems that support the Council’s service
delivery and provide the Council direction and oversight over its activities. We have provided further
detail on these audits below.

Financial Systems

These reviews will be carried out either as detailed reviews or audits that focus on key high level
controls. The approach for each of these audits will be agreed with management prior to the
commencement of the review. By adopting this approach we believe that we can prioritise audit
resource to areas where it can best be utilised.

The work undertaken on these systems will jointly be focused on the Council’s systems and
processes undertaken on their behalf by Hoople (where applicable).

General Ledger

This audit will focus on the controls the Council has in place over transactions posted to its General
Ledger. This will include assessing controls over journal processing, suspense accounts and its bank
accounts.

Creditors

The Council pays a number of suppliers through its Creditors function. This audit will focus on the
controls the Council has in place over how it raises orders and pays invoices relating to these
suppliers and we will also follow up work undertaken in response to the alleged fraud identified in
2011/12.

Payroll

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
8

Payroll

This audit will focus on the controls the Council has in place over payments made to its employees.
As part of this audit we will review the Council’s controls over employees who are added and
removed from the payroll system.

Budgetary Control

As part of this audit will review the Council’s controls over budget monitoring and how effectively
they are being applied in practice. This audit will also involve surveying and meeting with budget
holders to understand their views on the Council’s budget monitoring processes.

Treasury Management

This audit will involve a review of the controls which ensure that the Council’s Treasury
Management policy is adhered to and that investment and borrowing transactions are undertaken in
accordance with Council policy.

Income Collection

The Council receives income from a variety of sources, for example, from Car Parking, Planning and
Industrial Units. As part of this audit we will review a selection of income streams and assess the
controls which the Council has in place which ensure that income received is correctly accounted for.

Council Tax and NNDR

This audit will focus on the controls which the Council has in place over collecting tax from personal
and business premises.

Housing Benefit

The aim of this audit will be to assess the controls which the Council has in place over Housing
Benefit payments. We will assess controls over how entitlement to Housing Benefit is assessed,
reviewed and monitored. We will also review controls over how Housing Benefit is reclaimed if it
has been overpaid.

39



Section Four
Key Issues and Coverage – (continued)

4.3 Audit Reviews

Area Internal audit work in 2012/ 13

Corporate Services -
continued

Support systems

Health and Safety and Business Continuity

These reviews will focus on how effectively the Council has implemented the recommendations
which we made following our reviews of these areas in 2011/12. We may also identify in
conjunction with management other areas of focus.

Asset Register

This audit will focus on the controls the Council has in place which ensure that it can account for
and identify the assets which it has.

Procurement

The aim of this review will be to assess the controls the Council has in place which ensure that
officers comply with Standing Orders as part of the Procurement process. This audit will involve
reviewing a sample of major procurement projects and assessing if they have complied with the
Council’s procedures.

Rising to the Challenge – Follow Up and Project Management

As part of our 2011/12 work we reviewed the Council’s overall governance arrangements over the
Rising to the Challenge project. As part of this review we will follow up the recommendations that
we made as part of our audit and also review a sample of projects to assess how they comply with
the governance arrangements within this area.

Performance Management (Follow Up)

This review will focus on how effectively the Council has implemented the recommendations which
we made following our reviews of this area in 2011/12.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
9

Legal Services

We will assess how the Council is implementing new organisational structures within this area in
response to a specialist KPMG report in 2011/12.

IT Systems

Effective and efficient IT systems are key to ensuring that the Council fulfils its Corporate
Objectives. Our work within this area will include reviews of:

ISO 27001

Our work in this area will focus on the Council’s compliance with ISO27001. This ISO ensures that
the Council has key processes and controls in place, for example over how it backs up and
maintains its data.

IT Access Controls - - Agresso and Other IT systems

This review will focus on how effectively the Council has implemented the recommendations which
we made following our review of this area in 2011/12. We will also review access controls over
the Council’s other IT systems including Academy, ISIS and Abacus.

Data Protection

We will review how the Council complies with its responsibilities under the Data Protection Act
1998.

IT Strategy

As part of this audit we will review the Council's IT Strategy to ensure that it is fit for purpose, is
consistent with recognised best practice and links effectively into the Council’s other strategies.

40



Section Four
Key issues and coverage – (continued)

Area Internal audit work in 2012/ 13

Corporate Services -
continued

Anti-Fraud and Corruption

The Council has a duty to ensure that its resources are safeguarded against theft, mis-use or
loss. One of the ways in which it can do this is through the promotion of an effective anti-fraud
and corruption environment.

Our work in this area will be split into a number of areas.

Raising the profile of Anti-Fraud and Corruption (AFC)

We will complete a number of actions to raise the profile of AFC within the Council, including
developing a newsletter focusing on current issues within this area which will be distributed to
all staff, We will also develop a training module that will help employees understand their
responsibilities in relation AFC.

Hot Topics and review of high risk areas

We will assess how the Council is affected by current issues within the Anti Fraud and
Corruption area. For example, we will be reviewing how the Council has implemented the
requirements of the Bribery Act 2011. We will also review key areas that could be subject to
fraud and assess the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements to counter it. In 2012/13 we
will focus on Grants and the Council’s pre-employment verification process.

Anti-Fraud polices and procedures

We will review the Council Anti-Fraud polices and assess if they are fit for purpose and set out
in accordance with best practice.

Anti-Fraud Survey

We will also complete the Audit Commission’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Survey.

Hoople Hoople – Governance – Follow Up

This review will focus on how effectively the Council has implemented the recommendations
which we made following our review of this area in 2011/12.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
10

which we made following our review of this area in 2011/12.

Hoople – Client Side Management

This audit will focus on how the Council develops its relationship with Hoople and establishes
monitoring procedures to ensure that Hoople is delivering on its SLA targets.

People Services 
Directorate

Adult and Social Care

This review will focus on two key areas: how the Council is implementing new methods of
working in response to a specialist KPMG report on financial management matters and a deep
dive into specific areas to test whether changes are working as planned.

ASC – Procurement (Follow Up)

This review will focus on how effectively the Council is project managing the recommendations
which we made following our review of this area in 2011/12 and giving a view as to whether
the projects are on track.

Places and 
Communities 
Directorate

Public Health – Food Licensing

As part of this audit we will review the controls which the Council has in place in relation to
how it issues licences to premises in this area and ensures appropriate standards are being
maintained.

AMEY

We will follow up work undertaken in 2011/12 and identify in conjunction with management
other areas of focus in relation to contract management and value for money.

41



Section Four
Key issues and coverage – (continued)

Area Internal audit work in 2012/ 13

Schools Internal Audit was previously required to complete work within this area in relation to the
Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) process. This standard was withdrawn in
2011. In conjunction with the Schools Finance team we have now agreed a new audit process
and we will use this approach to undertake audits of Schools as part of our 2012/13 audit plan.

Follow Up This work in the area will entail following up high risk recommendation’s made within previous
year’s report and assessing the progress the Council has made in implementing them.

Contingency A number of days will remain unallocated to ensure that there is sufficient flexibility built within
the plan to account for unexpected issues which may arise during the year and which require
Internal Audit’s input.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
11

42



Section Five
Resources
5.1 Audit team

The core members of your audit team are set out below. The team will be led by Sav DellaRocca as the Head
of Internal Audit. Sav will be supported by Mukhtar Khangura who will act as the Internal Audit Manager.

Your internal audit team

Sav DellaRocca
Head of Internal 

Audit

Mukhtar Khangura 
Internal Audit 

Manager

Julie Jones
Senior Auditor

Other members of the Audit Team

Gary Williams
IT Auditor

Vicky Roissetter
Principal Auditor

Sharon Williams
Principal Auditor

All of the core Audit team members have significant experience of providing internal audit services. Sav
and Mukhtar w ill be supported by four Hoople staff who have been providing internal services to the

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
12

and Mukhtar w ill be supported by four Hoople staff who have been providing internal services to the
Council for a number of years and have considerable experience and knowledge of the organisation.

In addition to these core members of your team we will draw on other resources from KPMG to complete
our reviews. These staff w ill report to Sav to ensure that their work is co-ordinated and to ensure that
there is seamless delivery of the internal audit service.

43



Section Six
Our Audit Approach and Performance Indicators

6.1 Our Audit Approach

We aim to provide a service that not only meets your needs but also maintains consistently high standards
and meets the requirements of the Code of Internal Audit. Our detailed audit approach is set out in our
Internal Audit Manual, however, we summarised some aspects of the process below:

• Preparation of a detailed audit plan;

• Preparation of terms of reference which are provided to management two weeks prior to the audit
commencing;

• The use of qualified, highly trained and experienced staff;

• Regular review of progress against the plan to ensure we are delivering the work we have promised;

• A tailored audit approach using a defined methodology and assignment control documentation; and

• The review of all audit files and reports by the Manager and Head of Internal Audit as part of the Quality
Assurance process.

6.2 Operating principles – the assignment process

We will utilise a risk-based approach to the individual reviews in line with the Code. This involves:

• Identifying the risks that may impact on the systems achieving their objectives and identifying and
evaluating the systems of internal control designed by management;

• Compliance testing of the operation of controls; and

• Making appropriate recommendations and advising management on how systems of internal control may
be streamlined or strengthened.

The different delivery stages of the audit process are shown below. Our approach to individual reviews
recognises that different approaches will be required in different circumstances, for example in some cases

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
13

recognises that different approaches will be required in different circumstances, for example in some cases
as systems are being developed or revised it may be beneficial for us to defer detailed testing until a later
date, but instead focus on understanding and contributing to the development of the design of the control
framework.

Project PlanningStep 1

Opening ConferenceStep 2

Systems and Risk AnalysisStep 3

Review and Testing ProgrammeStep 4

Testing FieldworkStep 5

ValidationStep 6

Exit ConferenceStep 7

ReportingStep 8

Close out and evaluationStep 9

Follow upStep 10

Audit Committee ReportingStep 11

44



Section Six
Our Audit Approach and Performance Indicators

6.3 Reporting

On completion of our individual reviews, we will produce a report for management that will outline the
objectives and scope of our work, risks considered during our review, an assessment of the effectiveness of
internal controls and considerations for performance improvements. Each report w ill include an
implementation plan.

Follow ing our internal audit work for the year we will produce an Annual Internal Audit Report. This w ill
summarise the work completed and will provide an overall opinion in respect of risk, control and governance
arrangements.

6.4 Performance Indicators

Our internal procedures ensure that the service we deliver is of an appropriate quality and in compliance with
the Code. Over the year, we will also be working to a number of performance measures, these include ones
detailed below:

We will report performance against these indicators as part of our Annual Internal Audit Report.

Performance Measure Target

Terms of Reference agreed and issued 5 working days prior to start 
of audit 95%

Draft Report issued 10 working days after the de-brief meeting 95%

Management responses received within 10 working days of issue of 
draft report 95%

Final report issued within 5 working days of management responses 
being received 95%

Number of recommendations agreed by management 95%

Client Satisfaction Rate 90%

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
14

We will report performance against these indicators as part of our Annual Internal Audit Report.

45



Appendix 1 - Resource allocation for 2011/ 12 – 2014/ 15
Our Strategic Internal Audit Plan covering the years 2011/ 12 to 2013/ 14 is detailed on the following pages. We have explained
below how this has been structured and the how the elements of the plan relate to our planning processes:

The first part of our analysis shows 
which area is being reviewed (i.e. 
operational, corporate or support 
system) and the specific system 

proposed for review.

System
Internal audit risk assessment Year

Inherent Control Materiality Aggregate 12-13

H/M/L H/M/L H/M/L H/M/L ü

The second part of our analysis considers our internal audit risk assessment 
and uses the following risk assessment process to analyse the system 

under review:

The third part of our 
analysis shows the audit 

coverage. 

Inherent risk Control risk Materiality and risk Aggregate

Our assessment of the overall 
level of risk associated with the 
audit area – this is effectively a 
gross relative risk of the 
potential impact on you in this 
area. 

Our assessment of the risk that 
exists within a particular area 
based upon the controls that 
we are aware you have put in 
place – effectively the 
likelihood of the risk being 
realised. This is informed by 
previous internal audit reports 
and discussions with officers, 
but w ill be refined over time. 

Our assessment of the 
potential financial or 
organisational consequence to 
you. This might be judged by 
the potential for a monetary 
loss or the extent to which it 
impacts on core business 
objectives. 

This is our overall assessment 
of risk associated with each of 
the audit areas. It is reached 
with regard to each of the 
previous assessment of risks. 

We have set out below audits for the years 2011/12 to 2014/15 based on our risk assessment process above. This
analysis shows how we will cover each system on a cyclical basis based on the results of the risk assessment process.
We have also set out (where applicable) reviews which link into the Council’s risk register’s (detailed by “ Yes” ). Audit
reviews which do not explicitly link into the Council’s risk register are detailed as shaded areas. These reviews are
required for a number of reasons including, to inform the overall opinion on the Council’s internal controls system’s given

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2011/12 – 2014/15

Years

Linked to 
Risk 

Register’s

Aggregate 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

C
o
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ys
te
m
s

Payroll H ü ü ü ü

Creditors M ü ü ü ü

Treasury Management Yes M ü ü ü ü

Income Collection M - ü - ü

Debtors M ü - ü -

Budgetary Control M - ü - ü

NNDR Yes M ü ü ü ü

General Ledger Yes M ü ü ü ü

Council Tax Yes M ü ü ü ü

Housing Benefit M ü ü ü ü

Asset Register Yes M - ü - ü

Procurement Yes M ü - ü

required for a number of reasons including, to inform the overall opinion on the Council’s internal controls system’s given
by the Head of Internal Audit.

46



Appendix 1 - Resource allocation for 2011/ 12 – 2014/ 15
Years

Link to Risk 
Register

Aggregate 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

C
o
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ys
te
m
s

Education Transport Yes M ü - ü -

Rising to the Challenge – Governance Yes M ü - ü -

Rising to the Challenge – Project review Yes M - ü - ü

Health and Safety Yes H ü - ü -

Health and Safety – Follow Up Yes H - ü - ü

Sustainability Yes M ü - ü -

Sustainability – Follow Up Yes M - ü - ü

Member Allowances Yes M ü - - ü

Business Continuity Yes M ü - ü -

Business Continuity – Follow Up Yes M - ü - ü

Anti-Money Laundering Yes M ü - ü -

Gifts and Hospitality Yes M ü - ü -

Agency Payments Yes M ü - - -

Legal Services Yes M ü ü - ü

Total days for Core Support Systems - 210 - 240

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

IT
 s
ys
te
m
s

ISO 27001 Information Security Yes M ü ü ü ü

Access Controls review - Agresso, 
Academy, ISIS and Abacus 

H ü ü ü ü

Data Protection Yes M - ü - ü

IT Strategy Yes M - ü - ü

Total days for IT systems - 100 - 130

A
n
ti
-F
ra
u
d
 s
ys
te
m
s

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Arrangements Yes M - ü - ü

Anti-Fraud and Corruption – Procedures 
Audit

M ü ü ü -

Anti-Fraud and Corruption – Hot Topics and 
Risk Areas

M ü ü ü ü

Audit Commission - Anti-Fraud Survey M ü ü ü ü

Total days for Anti-Fraud systems - 75

G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 s
ys
te
m
s

Director Annual Assurance Statements M ü - ü -

Risk Management M ü - ü -

Performance Management Yes M ü - ü -

Performance Management – Follow Up Yes M - ü - ü

Performance Plus Yes M ü - ü -

Benefits Realisation Yes M ü - ü -

Total days for Governance systems - 20

47



Appendix 1 - Resource allocation for 2011/ 12 – 2014/ 15

System

Years

Link to Risk 
Register Aggregate 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

O
p
er
at
io
n
al
 s
ys
te
m
s 
–
D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 

Hoople – Client Side Management Yes M - ü - ü

Hoople – Governance Yes M ü - ü -

Hoople – Governance (Follow Up) Yes M - ü - ü

Adult and Social Care – Financial 
Management and Follow Up

Yes M - ü - ü

Adult and Social Care - Procurement Yes M ü - ü -

Adult and Social Care – Procurement 
(Follow Up)

Yes M - ü - -

Places and Communities - Public Health 
– Food Licensing 

Yes H - ü - ü

Places and Communities - PFI Project 
Management 

Yes M - - ü -

Places and Communities - ABG Grant 
Review

M ü - - -

Places and Communities - Planning Yes M ü - ü -

Places and Communities - AMEY Yes M ü ü - ü

Places and Communities - Taxi Licensing Yes M ü - ü -

Total days for Operational systems - 155 – 165

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

Schools M ü ü ü ü

Total Days for Schools - 30

Contingency (days) 60 - 90

M
G
T

Follow up (days)

-

25

Contract management and Audit and 
Governance Committee attendance 
(days)

75

Total 750 - 850

We have given a range of days to be used for each functional area for every Internal Audit year. This allows Internal Audit to
flexibly prioritise the audit resource allocated to each audit review based on its risk profile, current key issues within that area
and in accordance with the scope agreed with management.

48



Appendix 2 - Opinion and Description of Levels of Assurance

Audit Opinion

The audit opinion on the Council’s systems of internal control will be based on a review of the following:

• Core Systems, both Financial and Other;

• Anti-Fraud Systems;

• Corporate Systems;

• Governance Systems;

• IT Systems;

• Level of recommendations agreed for action by management.

• Results of the recommendations follow-up review.

An audit conclusion will be given to each audit review, which will inform the Head of Internal Audit’s overall
opinion on the Council’s system of internal control.

Regular progress reports w ill be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee, with the Annual Internal
Audit Report presented in the June following the financial year to which it relates.

We will use the following conclusions as the basis of the levels of assurance that we provide you with after
each review (although it should be noted that these represent an indicative approach as the overall assurance
provided are a matter of professional judgement).

Conclusion Definition

No assurance One or more priority one recommendations and fundamental design or operational
weaknesses in more than one part of the area under review

(i.e. the weakness or weaknesses identified have a fundamental and immediate impact
preventing achievement of strategic aims and/or objectives; or result in an unacceptable
exposure to reputation or other strategic risks).

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

exposure to reputation or other strategic risks).

Limited assurance One or more priority one recommendations, or a high number of medium priority
recommendations that taken cumulatively suggest a weak control environment

(i.e. the weakness or weaknesses identified have a significant impact preventing
achievement of strategic aims and/or objectives; or result in an unacceptable exposure to
reputation or other strategic risks).

Adequate assurance One or more priority two recommendations

(i.e. that there are weaknesses requiring improvement but these are not vital to the
achievement of strategic aims and objectives - however, if not addressed the weaknesses
could increase the likelihood of strategic risks occurring).

Substantial assurance No or priority three only recommendations.

(i.e. any weaknesses identified relate only to issues of good practice which could improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of the system or process).

49



Appendix 2 - Opinion and Description of Levels of Assurance
We have also agreed the following definitions for the priority of the recommendations that we may raise 
within our reports:

Priority Definition

Red

(Priority 1)

A significant weakness in the system or process which is putting the Council at serious risk
of not achieving its strategic aims and objectives. In particular: significant adverse impact on
reputation; non-compliance with key statutory requirements; or substantially raising the
likelihood that any of the Council’s strategic risks will occur. Any recommendations in this
category would require immediate attention.

Amber

(Priority 2)

A potentially significant or medium level weakness in the system or process which could
put the Council at risk of not achieving its strategic aims and objectives. In particular, having the
potential for adverse impact on the Council’s reputation or for raising the likelihood of the
Council’s strategic risks occurring, if not addressed.

Green

(Priority 3)

Recommendations which could improve the efficiency and/or effectiveness of the system or
process but which are not vital to achieving the Council’s strategic aims and objectives. These
are generally issues of good practice that we consider would achieve better outcomes.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

50



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Saverio Della Rocca, Interim Head of Audit on (01432) 260425 

  

MEETING: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6 JULY 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE SERVICES  

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with a draft forward work programme to enable them 
to discharge their responsibilities as the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

 Recommendation 

 THAT: the  work programme for 2012/13 be approved. 

Key Points Summary  

• The Terms of Reference of the Audit and Governance Committee are set out in Appendix 1 
(section 5.12.5). 

• The work programme has been drafted with reference to the requirements set out in Section 
5.12.5.  The work programme may be modified by the Chairman following consultation with the 
Vice Chairman and the Chief Officer - Financial and Commercial Services.  

• Training sessions may be undertaken as part of the programme, however, the content of the 
training has not yet been decided.  The Committee may wish to consider its training needs in 
due course. 

Alternative Options 

1 None as the Committee must fulfil its requirements as set out in the terms of reference 
although it may request others items of information in addition to that set out in the work 
programme. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To ensure the Committee can meets its terms of reference. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

51



Introduction and Background 

3 Section 12, paragraph 5.12.5 of the Audit and Governance Code sets out the terms of 
reference of the Audit and Governance Committee. In order to discharge these responsibilities 
effectively the Committee needs to plan its forward programme.  

Key Considerations 

4 The Committee’s terms of reference have been developed in line with the latest best practice.  
The items set out in the work programme are the minimum information requirements the 
Committee needs to fulfil its obligations. 

5 The Committee may request other information/reports as appropriate but will need to ensure 
that it does not extend beyond its remit.   

6 The work programme may be modified by the Chairman following consultation with the Vice 
Chairman and the Chief Officer - Financial and Commercial Services.  

7 Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issues arise, the Chairman may consider that 
issue. 

8 Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the work 
programme, they should contact the Chairman or Democratic Services to log the issue so that 
it can be taken into account when planning future agendas or when planning the work 
programme. 

9 The draft work programme has been the subject of consultation with the Leadership Team. 

Financial Implications 

10 There are no financial Implications. 

Legal Implications 

11 There are no legal Implications.  

Risk Management 

12 There is a risk that the Committee will not fulfil its obligations under its terms of reference.  The 
work programme mitigates this risk. 

Appendices 

 Appendix 1- Audit and Governance Committee terms of reference 

Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Plan work programme 2012/13 (page 14 onwards) 

 

52



Herefordshire Council 

PUBLIC SECTOR AUDIT

INTERNAL AUDIT

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 
2011/ 12 – 2014/ 15 and Annual 

Internal Audit Plan 
2012/ 13 

53



Content

The contacts 
in connection with this 
report are:

Saverio Della Rocca
Audit Director
KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel:  021 335 2367
saverio.dellarocca@kpmg.co.uk

Mukhtar Khangura
Audit Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0121 232 3216
Mukhtar.khangura@kpmg.co.uk

Page

1. Executive Summary 2

2. Internal Audit Objectives 4

3. Developing the plan 5

4. Key Issues and Coverage 7

5. Resources 11

6. Our Audit Approach and Performance Indicators  12

Appendices

1. Resource Allocation for 2011/12  - 2014/15

2. Opinion and Description of Levels of Assurance

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
1

This Report is CONFIDENTIAL and its circulation and use are RESTRICTED.

This Report has been prepared on the basis set out in our Contract, and should be read in
conjunction with the Contract. This Report is for the benefit of Herefordshire Council (“ the
Council” ) and the other parties that we have agreed in writing to treat as addressees of the
Contract (together with the Beneficiaries), and has been released to the Beneficiaries on the basis
that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part, w ithout our prior written
consent. We have not verified the reliability or accuracy of any information obtained in the course
of our work, other than in the limited circumstances set out in the Contract. This Report is not
suitable to be relied on by any party wishing to acquire rights against KPMG LLP (other than the
Beneficiaries) for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Beneficiaries that
obtains access to this Report or a copy (under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or otherwise)
and chooses to rely on this Report (or any part of it) does so at its own risk. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, KPMG LLP does not assume any responsibility and will not accept any liability in
respect of this Report to any party other than the Beneficiaries.

54



Section One
Executive Summary

1.1 Purpose of this report

This report meets the requirements under the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (2006) (“ the
Code” ) for the Head of Internal Audit to produce a Internal Audit Strategy together with an Annual Internal Audit
Plan. The Strategy is a high level statement of how the internal audit service will be delivered and developed. The
Annual Internal Audit Plan sets out the number and types of review which will be undertaken to deliver the Internal
Audit Strategy.

Under the Code there a number of areas that the Strategy must detail. We have set these out below:

• Internal Audit objectives (Section two);

• How Internal Audit’s work will identify and address significant local and national issues and risks (Section four);

• How the service will be provided (Section five); and

• The resources and skills required to deliver the strategy(Section five).

We have set out detail to support each of these requirements within the main body of our report.

1.2 Internal Audit’s objectives

The core role of Internal Audit is to provide assurance to senior management that there are adequate and effective
internal control arrangements in place to mitigate key risks and achieve objectives. In performing its role, Internal
Audit aims to, where appropriate:

• Contribute to the improvement of the internal control environment;

• Identify opportunities for performance improvement;

This draft audit plan outlines the proposed internal audit input for 2012/ 13. It has been prepared with
reference to previous audit issues, prior year internal audit activity, risks and developments within
Herefordshire Council (“the Council”) and topical issues in the sector.

The plan also sets out how we will comply with the relevant standards for provision of your internal audit
function. It provides a risk based analysis of the Council’s operations as a basis for our work and summarises the
performance metrics we will use.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
2

• Identify opportunities for performance improvement;

• Evaluate where systems are over controlled or inefficient; and

• Identify cost saving opportunities.

The detailed terms of reference for Internal Audit are set out within the Audit Charter which is being updated.

1.3 Key issues and Risks

The Council is facing a number of significant issues over the next financial year, both financially and operationally,
these include:

• Delivering key projects such as “ Rising to the Challenge” - This programme seeks to deliver, amongst other
objectives, improved performance at a reduced cost through different ways of working. The framework over this
programme has recently been further developed and the Council needs to ensure that these revised processes
successfully deliver the aims of the project;

• Continuing to embed working arrangements with Hoople - This has been Hoople’s first year of operation and it
has defined its role and set out its relationship with the Council. The next key step for the Council and for Hoople
is to embed working arrangements as Hoople starts to develop the services it could provide to other
organisations;

• Ensuring the continued effectiveness of its routine control and governance processes such as its risk
management, performance and financial management functions within the current period of change;

• Continuing to implement the roll out of the Agresso financial management system so that it not only delivers
robust day to day functionality, but it can also be used to drive efficiencies in how the Council, through Hoople,
delivers financial services;

• Ensuring that the Adult and Social Care function can successfully implement new ways of working in relation to
the issues raised over its financial management;

• Continuing to ensure that it can obtain maximum benefit from its major contracts, such as the contract which it
has in place with AMEY; and

• Responding effectively to counter fraudulent activity - the Council needs to ensure that both its processes and
procedures to highlight and deal w ith fraud are adequate and effective, in addition to creating an anti-fraud culture
where instances of fraud are not tolerated..

55



Section One
Executive Summary – (continued)

1.4 Developing the plan

We have compiled a risk based plan that takes account of the Council’s key issues and objectives. This plan has
been compiled through discussions with HPSLT members, the Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services),
our knowledge of the sector, a desk top review of key documents, such as the Council’s risk registers and a
review of findings from previous internal audits.

The Internal Audit Plan includes reviews of key financial, operational and corporate systems. We believe that a
total of 750 – 850 days of internal audit input is required to deliver the plan. This input w ill ensure that a fully
comprehensive internal audit service is provided to the Council. We have set out our draft Internal Audit Plan at
Appendix 1 and have provided further information on this area in Section four.

1.5 Resources

The Audit Service is being led by KPMG, with Sav Della Rocca as the Council’s Head of Internal Audit and Mukhtar
Khangura as the Internal Audit Manager. The service is to be provided using a combination of resources from
Hoople and resources from KPMG. All staff have considerable experience of providing an effective and efficient
internal audit service.

1.6 Audit Approach

We have a comprehensive audit approach and quality assurance process that meets the Code of Practice for
Internal Audit in Local Government (2006). This process is set out in our Audit Charter and is summarised in
Section six. This process ensures that our work is of a high standard and delivers a quality internal audit service to
the Council.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
3

56



Section Two
Internal Audit Objectives

The need to maintain an internal audit function is implied by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 under
which local authorities are required to make proper arrangements for the administration of their financial affairs
and to delegate responsibility for those arrangements to one of their officers. The Accounts and Audit Regulations
2003 amended by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 are explicit about the requirement to maintain an
adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance
with the proper practices in relation to internal control.

2.1 Core Role of Internal Audit

The core role of Internal Audit is to provide assurance to Members and senior management that there are
adequate and effective internal control arrangements in place to mitigate key risks and achieve objectives. In these
ever changing times we believe that Internal Audit should not only provide its core role but provide a added value
service. In performing its role, Internal Audit aims to, where appropriate:

• contribute to the improvement of the internal control environment;

• identify opportunities for performance improvement;

• evaluate where systems are over controlled or inefficient; and

• identify cost saving opportunities.

Internal Audit is not responsible for ensuring that adequate and effective internal controls are established to
manage the key risks – that responsibility lies with senior management.

2.2 Independence of Audit Services

KPMG have been engaged by the Council to lead the Internal Audit function for the Council. Sav, as Head of
Internal Audit, reports directly to the Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services). The Chief Officer (Finance
and Commercial Services) is the Council’s Responsible Financial Officer under the terms of Section 151 of the

Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective opinion to the Council on risk
management, control and governance by evaluating their effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives.
It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a proper economic,
efficient and effective use of resources.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
4

and Commercial Services) is the Council’s Responsible Financial Officer under the terms of Section 151 of the
Local Government Act 1972.

The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for the day to day management of the Audit Services Team.

57



Section Three
Developing the Plan

3.1 Developing the plan

All local authorities face a very challenging environment with pressures to both increase performance and
decrease costs. We believe that a responsive and effective internal audit function can help the Council in meeting
these challenges while assisting the Council achieve its objectives. This can only be achieved through developing
a comprehensive Internal Audit Plan in which the resources available to the internal audit function are allocated to
areas of greatest need. We have developed the draft plan taking into consideration the issues below:

Our proposed work for the year has involved completing a number of actions to ensure that the plan meets the 
needs of the Council and provides an effective and efficient assurance service.  

Internal
Audit
Plan

Desk top
review of key 
documents

(eg Corporate Plan 
and Risk Register)

Sign-off by 
management

and 
Audit and 

Governance 
Committee

Identifying
types of

audit

Risk
assessment 

(including updates 
to reflect 

emerging risks in 
year)

Meetings
with other 
assurance 
providers

Consultation
with

stakeholders

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
5

Plan

3.2 Desktop review

In developing the Internal Audit Plan, we have taken account of the following:

• The Council’s risk register’s (The Council Assurance Framework, The Partnership Assurance Framework and
The Board Assurance Framework documents);

• Discussions with officers including the views of the Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services);

• Emerging issues and risks facing the sector;

• The Council’s objectives detailed within its Corporate Plan 2011-14;

• Existing projects, strategies and initiatives that the Council is undertaking;

• Input from the Internal Audit Team;

• The performance of the Council from a review of its Key Performance Indicators; and

• The Council’s “ Rising to the Challenge” project.

3.3 Views of HPSLT and other officers

We have met w ith members of HPSLT and have factored in their views to the existing plan. In some
instances, Strategic Directors have asked that further meetings are held to determine the exact nature and
scope of individual reviews. For example, we have allocated time in the plan to focus on issues in relation to
Adult and Social Care, AMEY and Legal Services. The precise coverage of these reviews will be addressed
through further discussions with relevant officers.

58



Section Three
Developing the Plan – (continued)
3.3 Liaison with the External Auditors

We understand the importance of the good working relationships with the External Auditors in order to minimise
duplication of effort. We are due to meet with the external auditors shortly in order to build their requirements into
the audit plan, where appropriate, through our joint working protocol.

3.4 Liaison with the other assurance providers/links to wider projects

We recognise that there are other assurance providers (both internal and external) who provide some assurance
over aspects of the Council’s operations e.g. OFSTED and the Care Quality Commission. Where possible we will
seek to place reliance on such work and reduce internal audit coverage appropriately. For example, separate
support has been commissioned in relation to the PFI Waste contract with Worcestershire so there is no planned
audit work in this area.

We are also liaising with the Internal Audit team within NHS Herefordshire to ensure that effective working
relationship is established and to identify areas for joint review.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
6

59



Section Four
Key Issues and Coverage

Our detailed programme of work sets out how we propose to provide assurance over the key risks you face.  It 
might be necessary to update this Internal Audit Plan during the year, should the Council’s risk profile change and 
different risks emerge that would benefit from internal audit input.  We will ensure that both management and 
the Audit and Governance Committee are kept up to date with all work that we perform.

4.1 Overview

The Council is facing a number of significant challenges and risks over the next financial year as it continues to
implement a number of key programmes and initiatives. The Council has identified these risks within its
Corporate Risk Register’s. These include:

• Failure to deliver the £9.3m cost savings outlined for 2012/13;

• Inadequate commissioning of services which are not delivered to the appropriate cost and quality;

• Failure to progress with the Integrated Waste Management PFI Scheme; and

• Failure to further progress with Hoople and deliver the £413k savings the Council anticipates.

The Council will need assurance that the controls it has in place to mitigate these risks are being effectively
applied and that its control environment is robust.

4.2 Councils control environment

We have summarised below the Council’s overall control environment. The control environment is the
collection of systems and processes that helps the Council manage the above risks and achieve its objectives.
These groupings form the key strands to our internal audit work:

Core support: these include systems that support the Council’s service delivery, such as its financial, IT and HR
systems;

Corporate systems: these are the core business processes that give the Council direction and provide oversight
over its activities. For example, the risk management, performance management and corporate planning
processes; and

Operational systems: these include the main systems associated with the Council’s core activities and

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
7

Corporate systems

Core Support systems

Performance 
Management 

Risk Management

Legal Services

Business Continuity

Corporate Planning

Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption

IT
 and H

um
an R

esourcesC
or

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
s

Operational systems

Service Delivery

External stakeholders

In -house Out-sourced

Partnered

Operational systems: these include the main systems associated with the Council’s core activities and
functions.

60



Section Four
Key Issues and Coverage – (continued)

4.3 Audit Reviews

We have summarised the key areas of our internal audit plan below. The indicative resource allocations for
these is shown in Appendix 1. We have set these out below, grouped by Corporate and Directorate systems.

Area Internal audit work in 2012/ 13

Corporate systems These systems cover Financial Systems and Other systems that support the Council’s service
delivery and provide the Council direction and oversight over its activities. We have provided further
detail on these audits below.

Financial Systems

These reviews will be carried out either as detailed reviews or audits that focus on key high level
controls. The approach for each of these audits will be agreed with management prior to the
commencement of the review. By adopting this approach we believe that we can prioritise audit
resource to areas where it can best be utilised.

The work undertaken on these systems will jointly be focused on the Council’s systems and
processes undertaken on their behalf by Hoople (where applicable).

General Ledger

This audit will focus on the controls the Council has in place over transactions posted to its General
Ledger. This will include assessing controls over journal processing, suspense accounts and its bank
accounts.

Creditors

The Council pays a number of suppliers through its Creditors function. This audit will focus on the
controls the Council has in place over how it raises orders and pays invoices relating to these
suppliers and we will also follow up work undertaken in response to the alleged fraud identified in
2011/12.

Payroll

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
8

Payroll

This audit will focus on the controls the Council has in place over payments made to its employees.
As part of this audit we will review the Council’s controls over employees who are added and
removed from the payroll system.

Budgetary Control

As part of this audit will review the Council’s controls over budget monitoring and how effectively
they are being applied in practice. This audit will also involve surveying and meeting with budget
holders to understand their views on the Council’s budget monitoring processes.

Treasury Management

This audit will involve a review of the controls which ensure that the Council’s Treasury
Management policy is adhered to and that investment and borrowing transactions are undertaken in
accordance with Council policy.

Income Collection

The Council receives income from a variety of sources, for example, from Car Parking, Planning and
Industrial Units. As part of this audit we will review a selection of income streams and assess the
controls which the Council has in place which ensure that income received is correctly accounted for.

Council Tax and NNDR

This audit will focus on the controls which the Council has in place over collecting tax from personal
and business premises.

Housing Benefit

The aim of this audit will be to assess the controls which the Council has in place over Housing
Benefit payments. We will assess controls over how entitlement to Housing Benefit is assessed,
reviewed and monitored. We will also review controls over how Housing Benefit is reclaimed if it
has been overpaid.

61



Section Four
Key Issues and Coverage – (continued)

4.3 Audit Reviews

Area Internal audit work in 2012/ 13

Corporate Services -
continued

Support systems

Health and Safety and Business Continuity

These reviews will focus on how effectively the Council has implemented the recommendations
which we made following our reviews of these areas in 2011/12. We may also identify in
conjunction with management other areas of focus.

Asset Register

This audit will focus on the controls the Council has in place which ensure that it can account for
and identify the assets which it has.

Procurement

The aim of this review will be to assess the controls the Council has in place which ensure that
officers comply with Standing Orders as part of the Procurement process. This audit will involve
reviewing a sample of major procurement projects and assessing if they have complied with the
Council’s procedures.

Rising to the Challenge – Follow Up and Project Management

As part of our 2011/12 work we reviewed the Council’s overall governance arrangements over the
Rising to the Challenge project. As part of this review we will follow up the recommendations that
we made as part of our audit and also review a sample of projects to assess how they comply with
the governance arrangements within this area.

Performance Management (Follow Up)

This review will focus on how effectively the Council has implemented the recommendations which
we made following our reviews of this area in 2011/12.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
9

Legal Services

We will assess how the Council is implementing new organisational structures within this area in
response to a specialist KPMG report in 2011/12.

IT Systems

Effective and efficient IT systems are key to ensuring that the Council fulfils its Corporate
Objectives. Our work within this area will include reviews of:

ISO 27001

Our work in this area will focus on the Council’s compliance with ISO27001. This ISO ensures that
the Council has key processes and controls in place, for example over how it backs up and
maintains its data.

IT Access Controls - - Agresso and Other IT systems

This review will focus on how effectively the Council has implemented the recommendations which
we made following our review of this area in 2011/12. We will also review access controls over
the Council’s other IT systems including Academy, ISIS and Abacus.

Data Protection

We will review how the Council complies with its responsibilities under the Data Protection Act
1998.

IT Strategy

As part of this audit we will review the Council's IT Strategy to ensure that it is fit for purpose, is
consistent with recognised best practice and links effectively into the Council’s other strategies.

62



Section Four
Key issues and coverage – (continued)

Area Internal audit work in 2012/ 13

Corporate Services -
continued

Anti-Fraud and Corruption

The Council has a duty to ensure that its resources are safeguarded against theft, mis-use or
loss. One of the ways in which it can do this is through the promotion of an effective anti-fraud
and corruption environment.

Our work in this area will be split into a number of areas.

Raising the profile of Anti-Fraud and Corruption (AFC)

We will complete a number of actions to raise the profile of AFC within the Council, including
developing a newsletter focusing on current issues within this area which will be distributed to
all staff, We will also develop a training module that will help employees understand their
responsibilities in relation AFC.

Hot Topics and review of high risk areas

We will assess how the Council is affected by current issues within the Anti Fraud and
Corruption area. For example, we will be reviewing how the Council has implemented the
requirements of the Bribery Act 2011. We will also review key areas that could be subject to
fraud and assess the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements to counter it. In 2012/13 we
will focus on Grants and the Council’s pre-employment verification process.

Anti-Fraud polices and procedures

We will review the Council Anti-Fraud polices and assess if they are fit for purpose and set out
in accordance with best practice.

Anti-Fraud Survey

We will also complete the Audit Commission’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Survey.

Hoople Hoople – Governance – Follow Up

This review will focus on how effectively the Council has implemented the recommendations
which we made following our review of this area in 2011/12.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
10

which we made following our review of this area in 2011/12.

Hoople – Client Side Management

This audit will focus on how the Council develops its relationship with Hoople and establishes
monitoring procedures to ensure that Hoople is delivering on its SLA targets.

People Services 
Directorate

Adult and Social Care

This review will focus on two key areas: how the Council is implementing new methods of
working in response to a specialist KPMG report on financial management matters and a deep
dive into specific areas to test whether changes are working as planned.

ASC – Procurement (Follow Up)

This review will focus on how effectively the Council is project managing the recommendations
which we made following our review of this area in 2011/12 and giving a view as to whether
the projects are on track.

Places and 
Communities 
Directorate

Public Health – Food Licensing

As part of this audit we will review the controls which the Council has in place in relation to
how it issues licences to premises in this area and ensures appropriate standards are being
maintained.

AMEY

We will follow up work undertaken in 2011/12 and identify in conjunction with management
other areas of focus in relation to contract management and value for money.

63



Section Four
Key issues and coverage – (continued)

Area Internal audit work in 2012/ 13

Schools Internal Audit was previously required to complete work within this area in relation to the
Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) process. This standard was withdrawn in
2011. In conjunction with the Schools Finance team we have now agreed a new audit process
and we will use this approach to undertake audits of Schools as part of our 2012/13 audit plan.

Follow Up This work in the area will entail following up high risk recommendation’s made within previous
year’s report and assessing the progress the Council has made in implementing them.

Contingency A number of days will remain unallocated to ensure that there is sufficient flexibility built within
the plan to account for unexpected issues which may arise during the year and which require
Internal Audit’s input.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
11

64



Section Five
Resources
5.1 Audit team

The core members of your audit team are set out below. The team will be led by Sav DellaRocca as the Head
of Internal Audit. Sav will be supported by Mukhtar Khangura who will act as the Internal Audit Manager.

Your internal audit team

Sav DellaRocca
Head of Internal 

Audit

Mukhtar Khangura 
Internal Audit 

Manager

Julie Jones
Senior Auditor

Other members of the Audit Team

Gary Williams
IT Auditor

Vicky Roissetter
Principal Auditor

Sharon Williams
Principal Auditor

All of the core Audit team members have significant experience of providing internal audit services. Sav
and Mukhtar w ill be supported by four Hoople staff who have been providing internal services to the

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
12

and Mukhtar w ill be supported by four Hoople staff who have been providing internal services to the
Council for a number of years and have considerable experience and knowledge of the organisation.

In addition to these core members of your team we will draw on other resources from KPMG to complete
our reviews. These staff w ill report to Sav to ensure that their work is co-ordinated and to ensure that
there is seamless delivery of the internal audit service.

65



Section Six
Our Audit Approach and Performance Indicators

6.1 Our Audit Approach

We aim to provide a service that not only meets your needs but also maintains consistently high standards
and meets the requirements of the Code of Internal Audit. Our detailed audit approach is set out in our
Internal Audit Manual, however, we summarised some aspects of the process below:

• Preparation of a detailed audit plan;

• Preparation of terms of reference which are provided to management two weeks prior to the audit
commencing;

• The use of qualified, highly trained and experienced staff;

• Regular review of progress against the plan to ensure we are delivering the work we have promised;

• A tailored audit approach using a defined methodology and assignment control documentation; and

• The review of all audit files and reports by the Manager and Head of Internal Audit as part of the Quality
Assurance process.

6.2 Operating principles – the assignment process

We will utilise a risk-based approach to the individual reviews in line with the Code. This involves:

• Identifying the risks that may impact on the systems achieving their objectives and identifying and
evaluating the systems of internal control designed by management;

• Compliance testing of the operation of controls; and

• Making appropriate recommendations and advising management on how systems of internal control may
be streamlined or strengthened.

The different delivery stages of the audit process are shown below. Our approach to individual reviews
recognises that different approaches will be required in different circumstances, for example in some cases

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
13

recognises that different approaches will be required in different circumstances, for example in some cases
as systems are being developed or revised it may be beneficial for us to defer detailed testing until a later
date, but instead focus on understanding and contributing to the development of the design of the control
framework.

Project PlanningStep 1

Opening ConferenceStep 2

Systems and Risk AnalysisStep 3

Review and Testing ProgrammeStep 4

Testing FieldworkStep 5

ValidationStep 6

Exit ConferenceStep 7

ReportingStep 8

Close out and evaluationStep 9

Follow upStep 10

Audit Committee ReportingStep 11

66



Section Six
Our Audit Approach and Performance Indicators

6.3 Reporting

On completion of our individual reviews, we will produce a report for management that will outline the
objectives and scope of our work, risks considered during our review, an assessment of the effectiveness of
internal controls and considerations for performance improvements. Each report w ill include an
implementation plan.

Follow ing our internal audit work for the year we will produce an Annual Internal Audit Report. This w ill
summarise the work completed and will provide an overall opinion in respect of risk, control and governance
arrangements.

6.4 Performance Indicators

Our internal procedures ensure that the service we deliver is of an appropriate quality and in compliance with
the Code. Over the year, we will also be working to a number of performance measures, these include ones
detailed below:

We will report performance against these indicators as part of our Annual Internal Audit Report.

Performance Measure Target

Terms of Reference agreed and issued 5 working days prior to start 
of audit 95%

Draft Report issued 10 working days after the de-brief meeting 95%

Management responses received within 10 working days of issue of 
draft report 95%

Final report issued within 5 working days of management responses 
being received 95%

Number of recommendations agreed by management 95%

Client Satisfaction Rate 90%

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
14

We will report performance against these indicators as part of our Annual Internal Audit Report.

67



Appendix 1 - Resource allocation for 2011/ 12 – 2014/ 15
Our Strategic Internal Audit Plan covering the years 2011/ 12 to 2013/ 14 is detailed on the following pages. We have explained
below how this has been structured and the how the elements of the plan relate to our planning processes:

The first part of our analysis shows 
which area is being reviewed (i.e. 
operational, corporate or support 
system) and the specific system 

proposed for review.

System
Internal audit risk assessment Year

Inherent Control Materiality Aggregate 12-13

H/M/L H/M/L H/M/L H/M/L ü

The second part of our analysis considers our internal audit risk assessment 
and uses the following risk assessment process to analyse the system 

under review:

The third part of our 
analysis shows the audit 

coverage. 

Inherent risk Control risk Materiality and risk Aggregate

Our assessment of the overall 
level of risk associated with the 
audit area – this is effectively a 
gross relative risk of the 
potential impact on you in this 
area. 

Our assessment of the risk that 
exists within a particular area 
based upon the controls that 
we are aware you have put in 
place – effectively the 
likelihood of the risk being 
realised. This is informed by 
previous internal audit reports 
and discussions with officers, 
but w ill be refined over time. 

Our assessment of the 
potential financial or 
organisational consequence to 
you. This might be judged by 
the potential for a monetary 
loss or the extent to which it 
impacts on core business 
objectives. 

This is our overall assessment 
of risk associated with each of 
the audit areas. It is reached 
with regard to each of the 
previous assessment of risks. 

We have set out below audits for the years 2011/12 to 2014/15 based on our risk assessment process above. This
analysis shows how we will cover each system on a cyclical basis based on the results of the risk assessment process.
We have also set out (where applicable) reviews which link into the Council’s risk register’s (detailed by “ Yes” ). Audit
reviews which do not explicitly link into the Council’s risk register are detailed as shaded areas. These reviews are
required for a number of reasons including, to inform the overall opinion on the Council’s internal controls system’s given

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2011/12 – 2014/15

Years

Linked to 
Risk 

Register’s

Aggregate 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

C
o
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ys
te
m
s

Payroll H ü ü ü ü

Creditors M ü ü ü ü

Treasury Management Yes M ü ü ü ü

Income Collection M - ü - ü

Debtors M ü - ü -

Budgetary Control M - ü - ü

NNDR Yes M ü ü ü ü

General Ledger Yes M ü ü ü ü

Council Tax Yes M ü ü ü ü

Housing Benefit M ü ü ü ü

Asset Register Yes M - ü - ü

Procurement Yes M ü - ü

required for a number of reasons including, to inform the overall opinion on the Council’s internal controls system’s given
by the Head of Internal Audit.

68



Appendix 1 - Resource allocation for 2011/ 12 – 2014/ 15
Years

Link to Risk 
Register

Aggregate 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

C
o
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ys
te
m
s

Education Transport Yes M ü - ü -

Rising to the Challenge – Governance Yes M ü - ü -

Rising to the Challenge – Project review Yes M - ü - ü

Health and Safety Yes H ü - ü -

Health and Safety – Follow Up Yes H - ü - ü

Sustainability Yes M ü - ü -

Sustainability – Follow Up Yes M - ü - ü

Member Allowances Yes M ü - - ü

Business Continuity Yes M ü - ü -

Business Continuity – Follow Up Yes M - ü - ü

Anti-Money Laundering Yes M ü - ü -

Gifts and Hospitality Yes M ü - ü -

Agency Payments Yes M ü - - -

Legal Services Yes M ü ü - ü

Total days for Core Support Systems - 210 - 240

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

IT
 s
ys
te
m
s

ISO 27001 Information Security Yes M ü ü ü ü

Access Controls review - Agresso, 
Academy, ISIS and Abacus 

H ü ü ü ü

Data Protection Yes M - ü - ü

IT Strategy Yes M - ü - ü

Total days for IT systems - 100 - 130

A
n
ti
-F
ra
u
d
 s
ys
te
m
s

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Arrangements Yes M - ü - ü

Anti-Fraud and Corruption – Procedures 
Audit

M ü ü ü -

Anti-Fraud and Corruption – Hot Topics and 
Risk Areas

M ü ü ü ü

Audit Commission - Anti-Fraud Survey M ü ü ü ü

Total days for Anti-Fraud systems - 75

G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 s
ys
te
m
s

Director Annual Assurance Statements M ü - ü -

Risk Management M ü - ü -

Performance Management Yes M ü - ü -

Performance Management – Follow Up Yes M - ü - ü

Performance Plus Yes M ü - ü -

Benefits Realisation Yes M ü - ü -

Total days for Governance systems - 20

69



Appendix 1 - Resource allocation for 2011/ 12 – 2014/ 15

System

Years

Link to Risk 
Register Aggregate 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

O
p
er
at
io
n
al
 s
ys
te
m
s 
–
D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 

Hoople – Client Side Management Yes M - ü - ü

Hoople – Governance Yes M ü - ü -

Hoople – Governance (Follow Up) Yes M - ü - ü

Adult and Social Care – Financial 
Management and Follow Up

Yes M - ü - ü

Adult and Social Care - Procurement Yes M ü - ü -

Adult and Social Care – Procurement 
(Follow Up)

Yes M - ü - -

Places and Communities - Public Health 
– Food Licensing 

Yes H - ü - ü

Places and Communities - PFI Project 
Management 

Yes M - - ü -

Places and Communities - ABG Grant 
Review

M ü - - -

Places and Communities - Planning Yes M ü - ü -

Places and Communities - AMEY Yes M ü ü - ü

Places and Communities - Taxi Licensing Yes M ü - ü -

Total days for Operational systems - 155 – 165

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

Schools M ü ü ü ü

Total Days for Schools - 30

Contingency (days) 60 - 90

M
G
T

Follow up (days)

-

25

Contract management and Audit and 
Governance Committee attendance 
(days)

75

Total 750 - 850

We have given a range of days to be used for each functional area for every Internal Audit year. This allows Internal Audit to
flexibly prioritise the audit resource allocated to each audit review based on its risk profile, current key issues within that area
and in accordance with the scope agreed with management.

70



Appendix 2 - Opinion and Description of Levels of Assurance

Audit Opinion

The audit opinion on the Council’s systems of internal control will be based on a review of the following:

• Core Systems, both Financial and Other;

• Anti-Fraud Systems;

• Corporate Systems;

• Governance Systems;

• IT Systems;

• Level of recommendations agreed for action by management.

• Results of the recommendations follow-up review.

An audit conclusion will be given to each audit review, which will inform the Head of Internal Audit’s overall
opinion on the Council’s system of internal control.

Regular progress reports w ill be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee, with the Annual Internal
Audit Report presented in the June following the financial year to which it relates.

We will use the following conclusions as the basis of the levels of assurance that we provide you with after
each review (although it should be noted that these represent an indicative approach as the overall assurance
provided are a matter of professional judgement).

Conclusion Definition

No assurance One or more priority one recommendations and fundamental design or operational
weaknesses in more than one part of the area under review

(i.e. the weakness or weaknesses identified have a fundamental and immediate impact
preventing achievement of strategic aims and/or objectives; or result in an unacceptable
exposure to reputation or other strategic risks).

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

exposure to reputation or other strategic risks).

Limited assurance One or more priority one recommendations, or a high number of medium priority
recommendations that taken cumulatively suggest a weak control environment

(i.e. the weakness or weaknesses identified have a significant impact preventing
achievement of strategic aims and/or objectives; or result in an unacceptable exposure to
reputation or other strategic risks).

Adequate assurance One or more priority two recommendations

(i.e. that there are weaknesses requiring improvement but these are not vital to the
achievement of strategic aims and objectives - however, if not addressed the weaknesses
could increase the likelihood of strategic risks occurring).

Substantial assurance No or priority three only recommendations.

(i.e. any weaknesses identified relate only to issues of good practice which could improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of the system or process).

71



Appendix 2 - Opinion and Description of Levels of Assurance
We have also agreed the following definitions for the priority of the recommendations that we may raise 
within our reports:

Priority Definition

Red

(Priority 1)

A significant weakness in the system or process which is putting the Council at serious risk
of not achieving its strategic aims and objectives. In particular: significant adverse impact on
reputation; non-compliance with key statutory requirements; or substantially raising the
likelihood that any of the Council’s strategic risks will occur. Any recommendations in this
category would require immediate attention.

Amber

(Priority 2)

A potentially significant or medium level weakness in the system or process which could
put the Council at risk of not achieving its strategic aims and objectives. In particular, having the
potential for adverse impact on the Council’s reputation or for raising the likelihood of the
Council’s strategic risks occurring, if not addressed.

Green

(Priority 3)

Recommendations which could improve the efficiency and/or effectiveness of the system or
process but which are not vital to achieving the Council’s strategic aims and objectives. These
are generally issues of good practice that we consider would achieve better outcomes.

© 2012 KPMG LLP, the UK member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

David Powell, Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services) on (01432) 383519 
  

  

 MEETING: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE  

DATE: 6 JULY 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: ANNUAL AUDIT FEE LETTER AND AUDIT WORK 
2011/12 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE SERVICES  

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To inform the Committee of the work to be undertaken over coming months for 2011/12 financial year 
by the Audit Commission.  The report also includes the proposed indicative fee. 
 
Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendations 

 THAT: 
 
  (a) the content of the Audit Commission’s Annual Audit Plan be noted; and 
 
  (b) the planned outputs be noted. 
  
Key Points Summary 

1. The proposed audit fee for 2011/12 is £274,672.  This is a reduction of £15,000 on the 
2010/11 fee. 
 

2. The Audit Plan lists key milestones and deadlines leading to the District Auditor being able to 
complete required work prior to issuing an audit opinion and value for money conclusion 

 

Alternative Options 

2. There are no alternative options. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

79



Reasons for Recommendations 

3. The Audit Commission is the Council’s appointed external auditor.  The annual fee letter is an 
opportunity for the Audit and Governance Committee to be informed of the planned outputs 
and proposed fee. 

Key Considerations 

4. The Annual Audit Fee letter details the amount to be paid to the Audit Commission (£274,672).  
This is a decrease on the actual fees of £290,000 for 2010/11.  The reason for the reduction is 
outlined in the letter and is from a combination of factors.  Any fee amendments will be 
discussed with the Council’s Chief Officer (Finance and Commercial Services) and a report 
would then go to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

5. The Audit fee covers work on the audit of financial statements, value for money conclusion 
and Whole of Government accounts aspects. 

 
6. The Audit Commission indicates that given the timescale of the financial challenge faced by 

local government it will review the robustness of Herefordshire’s medium term financial plan.  
The value for money of any variations to the waste disposal contract along with a review of 
progress on benefits realisation from the transformation programme will also be reviewed. 
 

7. The letter lists the planned outputs and their indicative dates. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

8. The fee reflected in the Audit Plan is included in the Council’s budget. 
 
Legal Implications 

9. There are no legal implications. 

Risk Management 

10. The effective management of risk is through the delivery of internal processes that address the 
risks associated with areas such as final accounts delivery. 
 

11. Appendix 2 of the attached report indicates the basis of the fee.  Certain assumptions are 
included such as “Hoople” providing appropriate access.  This is mitigated by the oversight of 
the Hoople contract by the Chief Officer: Finance & Commercial.  

 
Consultees 

None 
 
Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Audit Plan 
 
Background Papers 

None identified. 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

David Powell, Chief Officer: Finance & Commercial on 01432 383519 

  

MEETING: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6 JULY 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE 
FROM THE AUDIT COMMISSION 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE SERVICES  

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 
To provide an update on the progress of the Audit Commission delivering their responsibilities as the 
council’s external auditors.  It also updates the Committee on the externalisation of the audit practice. 
 
Key Decision 
This is not a key decision 
 
Recommendation 
 

THAT:  the report be noted. 
 

Alternative Options 
 
1. There are no alternative options. 
 
Introduction and Background 
 
2. The Audit Commission is the Council’s external auditor.  The report provides information on 

the progress to date developing the audit plan.  It also covers the outcome of the 
externalisation of the Audit Commission’s Audit Service. 
 

Key Considerations 
 
3. The report outlines a number of identified key risks that shape the Audit Plan covered 

elsewhere in the agenda.  The risks mainly cover the significant changes to the council’s 
approach to the provision of support services including new systems. 
 

4. As in previous years there has been good communication between the council and the Audit 
Commission around the final accounts timetable.  Council officers attended a training session 
the Audit Commission provided on this year’s technical changes. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

103



5. The report outlined three areas that will inform the statutory Value for Money conclusion as 
being: 
 

a. The impact of a significant reduction in government grants on the medium term 
financial plan; 
 

b. The council’s ability to demonstrate that any change to the current waste disposal 
arrangements to provide a waste to energy plan in Hartlebury delivers value for money; 
and  

 
c. That continued overspending in Adult Social care will make it increasingly difficult to 

balance the council’s financial position. 
 

6. Independent quality monitoring of audits indicated that Herefordshire’s audit received the 
highest rating as a result of the detailed review. 
 

7. The Audit Commission recently announced the outcome of the procurement exercise to 
outsource work currently undertaken by the Audit Practice for 2012/13 to 2016/17.  The Audit 
Commission will remain as a small residuary body until the end of the contracts but from 
2012/13 Grant Thornton have been awarded the West Midlands contract and will become the 
Council’s external auditors. 
 

8. The update also includes other matters of interest including the annual fraud and corruption 
survey process as well as capital finance system changes.  The council has completed the 
annual survey and implications of the change to capital regulations. 
 

9. The council has also conformed to the new pay policy requirements outlined in the document. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
10. There are no financial implications. 

 
Legal Implications 
 
11. There are no legal implications. 

 
Risk Management 
 
12. The changeover to new auditors may raise risk levels but the intention is for current staff up to 

the level of District Auditor to remain involved with Herefordshire’s audit. 
 

Appendices 
 
None 
 

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	5 DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
	Annual Governance Statement - working copy

	6 ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT  PLAN
	KPMG Hereford audit plan310512 12-13 Dr

	7 WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13
	KPMG Hereford audit plan310512 12-13 Dr
	Terms of Reference AG Code

	8 ANNUAL AUDIT  FEE LETTER AND AUDIT WORK 2011/12
	auditplan HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 2011-12 - 18-04-2011 (2) (2)

	9 AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE FROM THE AUDIT COMMISSION
	HCAudit Committee Updatejune2012finalto committee


